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2014 1,650 116,400 510,820
po1s - (1,650) (116,400) (510,820)
11
2015 6,530 60,100 457,250
(6,530) (60,100) (457,250)
2016 30
12
2016 3,990 37,850 423,390
o017 - (3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
13
017 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
o8 0 (3,132,640) (168,260) (3,387,770)
14
018 6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
Y016 0 (6,954,910) (307,260) (10,035, 420)
15
2019 9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
200 0 (9,931,980) (1,040,690) (18,926,710)
16
2020 9,154,250 3,587,690 24,493,270
2021 - (9,154, 250) (3,587,690) (24,493, 270)
17
ozt 1,361,070 5,880,780 19,973,560
o2 0 (1,361,070) (5,880, 780) (19,973,560)
18
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o1 0 (7,588,070) (14,399,919) (80,202,786)
13
017 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
o8 " (4,407,620) (15,701,116) (68,909,290)
14
018 0 8,861,870 60,047,420
2015 0 ©) (8,861,870) (60,047,420)
15
2019 0 5,285,895 54,761,525
©) (5.285,895) (54,761,525)
2020 30
16
2020 0 5,520,480 49,241,045
) (5.520,480) (49,241,045)
2021 30
17
- 0 9,556,560 39,684,485
2022 ” ) (9,556,560) (39,684, 485)
18
2022 0 6,385,355 33,299,130
©) (6,385,355) (33,299,130)
2023 30
19
2023 0 5,238,745 28,060,385
.y " ©) (5,238,745) (28,060, 385)
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2150 12 31
2005 10
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2150 12 31
12

90

10
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180

120
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2024

30

2024
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30

23 103

25 193

UFJ 144.80
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2024 30 2023 30
3,4,8,12 265,743,138 38,479,606 536,157,539 77,635,612
8 17,774,399 2,573,733 118,551,718 17,166,289
4,8 104,384 15,115
4,8 270,463 39,163
1,798,646 260,444 5,094,990 737,755
3,8 25,479,123 3,689,377 8,212,915 1,189,230
4 3,903,548 565,234
314,803,238 45,583,509 668,287,625 96,768,048
3,4,8,12 26,032,401 3,769,492 130,001,321 18,824,191
8,11 73,892,650 10,699, 656 284,507,459 41,196,680
6 189,719 27,471 113,921 16,496
4,8 62,437 9,041
4,8 253,213 36,665
8,9 639,703 92,629 230,820 33,423
8,9 96,039 13,906 174,314 25,241
2,380,968 344,764 3,018,532 437,083
4 13,504 1,955
8,9 382,793 55,428 350,550 50,760
103,880,990 15,041,967 418,459,354 60,592,914
1,8 210,922,248 30,541,542 249,828,271 36,175,134
210,985,427 30,550,690 249,862,541 36,180,096
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2024 30 2023 30
3,8 11,056,509 1,600,983 17,677,392 2,559,686
16,778 2,429 (21,399) (3,099)
524,257 75,912 (22,476,640) (3.254,617)
10 138 20
11,597,544 1,679,324 (4,820,509) (698,010)
9 3,274,971 474,216 3,981,409 576,508
9 96,896 14,031 118,210 17,117
9 50,519 7,315 68,640 9,939
9 377,344 54,639 379,955 55,017
9 68,356 9,898 77,839 11,271
9 96,865 14,026 94,130 13,630
9 88,033 12,747 81,926 11,863
9 (319, 255) (46,228) (258,433) (37,421)
3,733,729 540,644 4,543,676 657,924
7,863,815 1,138,680 (9,364,185) (1,355,934)
7 (9,305, 157) (1,347,387) (11,101,401) (1,607,483)
(1,441,342) (208,706) (20,465,586) (2,963,417)
(1,441,342) (208,706) (20,465,586) (2,963,417)
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2023 30

1,8

249,828,271 36,175,134 340,012,110 49,233,754
(1,441,342) (208,706) (20,465,586) (2,963,417)
910,535 131,845 2,968,567 429,849
(27,596,796) (3,996,016) (35,175,040) (5,093, 346)
(10,778,420) (1,560,715) (37,511,780) (5,431,706)
(37,464,681) (5,424,886) (69,718,253)  (10,095,203)
210,922,248 30,541,542 249,828,271 36,175,134
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2024 30 2023 30

(1,441,342) (208,706) (20, 465,586) (2,963,417)

3 (11,410,097) (1,652,182) (25,176,133) (3,645,504)

7 9,305,157 1,347,387 11,101,401 1,607,483

353,588 51,200 7,498,741 1,085,818

(16,778) (2,429) 21,399 3,099

(3,209,472) (464,732) (27,020,178) (3,912,522)

8 100,777,319 14,592,556 181,397,096 26,266,300

8,11 (210,614,809)  (30,497,024)  (101,323,914)  (14,671,703)

4,8 (104,384) (15,115) 142,299 20,605

4,8 270,463 39,163 (29,846) (4,322)
4 (3,903,548) (565, 234)

8,9 (78,275) (11,334) 59,248 8,579

4,8 (62,437) (9,041) 62,437 9,041
4,8 253,213 36,665
4 13,504 1,955

8,9 408,883 59,206 (542,207) (78,512)

8 (637,564) (92,319) (876,620) (126,935)

8,9 32,243 4,669 (42,003) (6,082)

3,4,8,12 270,414,401 39,156,005 314,278,689 45,507,554

3,4,8,12 __ (103,968,920) __ (15,054,700) _ (338,030,882) __ (48,946,872)

49,590,617 7,180,721 28,074,119 4,065,132

14,352,853 2,078,293 16,632,849 2,408,437

63,943,470 9,259,014 44,706,968 6,473,569

7 (9,305,157) (1,347,387) (11,101,401) (1,607,483)

6 910,535 131,845 2,968,567 429,849

6 (38,299,418) (5,545,756) (74,106,047) __ (10,730,556)

(46,694,040) (6,761,297) (82,238,881) __(11,908,190)

17,249,430 2,497,717 (37,531,913) __ (5,434,621)

3,8 8,212,915 1,189,230 45,766,227 6,626,950

16,778 2,429 (21,399) (3,099)

3,8 25,479,123 3,689,377 8,212,915 1,189,230
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2024 30
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2005
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2024 30 210,922,248
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2024 30 2023 30

2024 30 2023 30
426
137,169 175,144
25,341,954 8,037,345

25,479,123 8,212,915
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35,199,180 2023 50,856,275

to be announced
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1,081,072
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2024 30
2024 30
300
50,000

300

2023 30
2023 30
10
1,000,000
10,000
50,000
3.25
4.00
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2024 2023 2024 2023
30 30 30 30
35,285,540 45,546,625 1,086 1,086
35,352 221,235
(5,765,676)  (10,482,320)
29,555,216 35,285,540 1,086 1,086
2024 2023 2024 2023
30 30 30 30
33,299,130 39,684,485 13,612,990 19,973,560
174,980 548,870
(5,238,745) (6,385, 355) (2,077,955) (6,909,440)
28,060,385 33,299,130 11,710,015 13,612,990
2024 30
100 2023 100 2024 30
100
2023 100 2024 30
100 2023 100
9,315,803
0.2872 2023 11,121,640 0.2842

2023
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2023

65

6,276,615

3,829,568

0.204

82

3,028,542
0.24

2023
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2023 7,271,833
0.24



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 30 2023 30
303,363,344 893,607,061
146,413,080 725,984,329
314 436
19,080,892 32,563,817

2,210,581
653,601,249 3,198,349,325
4,355,452 4,355,452
13,501,873 23,436,689
12,687,921 24,418,537

13,010,000

* 2024 30 2023 30
10
10
** 280 34 54,247,937
4,232,754 2023
87,515,625

2024 30 2023 30
490,800,000 1,152,200,000
449,700,000 849,200,000
400 500
34,300,000 50,500,000

940,000

**

1,053,100,000

2,456,200,000

4,400,000 4,400,000
35,600,000 59,200,000
8,000,000 2,300,000

13,500,000
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99

2024 30 0.98
2023 30 0.81
2024 30 6.70 0.17 6.60

2023 30 5.53 0.22 5.39

93/264



2024

30

EDINETOOOO

OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1,949,871 1,949,871
15,779 15,779
95,710 95,710

242 242
5,812,617 674,016 6,486,633
21,454 21,454
195,240 195,240
3,942 3,942
128,186 128,186
5,812,617 3,084,440 8,897,057
784,676 784,676
994 994
34,427 34,427
9,926 9,926
1,375 1,375
4,071 4,071
2,441 2,441
595,119 595,119
18,372 18,372
6,072 6,072
25,582 25,582
116,655 116,655
16,488 16,488
10,424 10,424
11,789 11,789
9,007 9,007
23,347 23,347
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16,089 16,089

41,038 41,038

32,020 32,020

1,759,912 1,759,912
2024 30
2023 30

1,824,875 1,824,875

5,724,635 5,724,635

47,375 47,375

6,960,045 11,781,926 18,741,971

72,765 72,765

30,824 30,824

9,612 9,612

112,288 112,288

6,960,045 19,604,300 26,564,345

1,014,031 1,014,031

7,487,973 7,487,973

67,452 67,452

11,818,825 11,818,825

227,081 227,081

350 350

160,047 160,047

1,800 1,800

20,777,559 20,777,559

5 5

47 47

374 374

426 426
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2024 30
3,903,548 3,903,548
25,341,954 137,169 25,479,123
17,774,399 17,774,399
104,384 104,384
1,798,646 1,798,646
44,776,747 50,938,818 169,705, 262 322,311 265,743,138
70,223,085 50,938,818 169,705,262 23,936,073 314,803,238
13,504 13,504
73,892,650 73,892,650
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189,719 189,719

253,213 253,213
413,431 1,967,537 2,380,968

639,703 639,703

96,039 96,039

382,793 382,793

553,633 1,953,901 23,357,020 167,847 26,032,401
806,846 2,367,332 25,324,557 75,382,255 103,880,990
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2023 30

8,037,345 175,570 8,212,915

118,551,718 118,551,718

270,463 270,463

5,094,990 5,094,990

65,680,374 41,353,960 428,828,979 294,226 536,157,539

73,988,182 41,353,960 428,828,979 124,116,504 668,287,625

284,507,459 284,507,459

113,921 113,921

62,437 62,437

195,022 2,823,510 3,018,532

230,820 230,820

174,314 174,314

350,550 350,550

2,355,637 2,795,227 124,180,858 669,599 130,001,321

2,418,074 2,990,249 127,004,368 286,046,663 418,459,354
2024 30 2023 30

2,191,960 1,447,980

8,864,549 16,229,412

11,056,509 17,677,392

2024 30 2023 30

98/264



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 30

74,394,306 14,593,048 225,815,884 314,803,238

13,504 13,504
73,892,650 73,892,650
189,719 189,719
253,213 253,213
2,380,968 2,380,968

639,703 639,703
96,039 96,039
382,793 382,793
116,655 488,676 25,427,070 26,032,401

75,584,276 488,676 27,808,038 103,880,990
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2023 30

184,985,059 4,168,061 479,134,505 668,287,625

284,507,459 284,507,459
113,921 113,921
62,437 62,437
3,018,532 3,018,532

230,820 230,820
174,314 174,314
350,550 350,550

227,081 1,067,936 128,706,304 130,001,321

285,666,582 1,067,936 131,724,836 418,459,354

35,199,180
2023 50,856,275
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2024 2023
30 30
13.15 15.79
2.47 0.72
1.73 0.67
8.96 6.82
18.32 17.02
6.07 7.62
3.34 6.87
12.40 14.86
33.56 29.63
100.00 100.00

2024 30 2023 30
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856,696 2023 2,355,514
673,191 2023 2,168,676
10
2024 30
18.49 51,299,986
13.88 38,492,740
12.44 34,509,000 2023
49.36 258,910,491
2024 30 2023 30
219,904,871 469,606,740
34,509,000 49,859,000
. 6,885,584 12,158,249
25,479,123 8,212,915
17,774,399 118,551,718
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2023

2023

1,798,646 5,094,990
3,903,548
104,384
270,463
12
2024 30 2023 30
12
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2024 30

1,646,769 1,646,769
1,891,000 489,968 2,380,968
431,183 431,183
1,104,616 1,104,616
790,612 790,612
195,392 195,392
173,771 173,771
920,561 920,561
2,128,330 2,128,330
388,737 388,737
4,103,846 4,103,846
2,615,085 2,615,085
3,004,073 3,004,073
9,491,675 9,491,675
2,778,743 2,778,743
6,447,649 6,447,649
5,789,366 5,789,366
3,021,443 3,021,443
1,395,557 1,395,557
359,906 359,906
3,469,483 3,469,483

17,696,862 17,696,862
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26,155,570 26,155,570
10,801,079 10,801,079
22,033,051 22,033,051
506,947 506,947
1,406,427 1,406,427
553,530 553,530
3,185,088 3,185,088
326,927 326,927
645,218 645,218
490,371 490,371
1,556,090 1,556,090
1,740,949 1,740,949
889,997 889,997
41,077,441 41,077,441
72,710,559 72,710,559
1,891,000 252,522,871 254,413,871
322,311 322,311
4,517,067 4,517,067
6,489,889 6,489,889
11,329,267 11,329,267
265,743,138

25,341,954 25,341,954
7,599,938 7,599,938
888,596 888,596
647,971 647,971
167,847 167,847
3,029,978 3,029,978
18,149 18,149
248,658 248,658
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6,085,484 6,085,484
9,550,116 9,550,116
16,482,285 16,482,285
26,032,401
7,054,695 7,054,695
72,363 72,363
2023 30
2,155,583 2,155,583
1,615,000 1,403,532 3,018,532
63,749 63,749
506,612 506,612
540,380 540,380
3,033,947 3,033,947
1,696,477 1,696,477
650,375 650,375
114,874 114,874
2,362,363 2,362,363
4,532,688 4,532,688
399,857 399,857
343,614 343,614
3,414,316 3,414,316
5,654,111 5,654,111
1,406,202 1,406,202
10,365,622 10,365,622
1,753,527 1,753,527

10,391,700 10,391,700
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1,572,496 1,572,496
3,288,577 3,288,577
1,925,871 1,925,871
1,099,307 1,099,307
20,444,921 20,444,921
36,698,790 36,698,790
27,673,192 27,673,192
26,291,838 26,291,838
482,725 482,725
537,666 537,666
392,296 392,296
1,171,783 1,171,783
639,104 639,104
489,527 489,527
105,735 105,735
738,405 738,405
63,091,138 63,091,138
280,417,840 280,417,840
1,615,000 517,850,740 519,465,740
294,226 294,226
7,695,586 7,695,586
8,701,987 8,701,987
16,691,799 16,691,799
536,157,539

8,037,345 8,037,345
54,898,789 54,898,789
669,599 669,599
6,631,299 6,631,299
315,519 315,519
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9,033,091 9,033,091
16,649,508 16,649,508

113,351,813 113,351,813

130,001,321

49,940,015 49,940,015

859,598 859,598
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2024 30 2023 30
25,341,954 8,037,345
210,955,462 453,356,070
34,509,000 49,859,000

2023

6,568,441 13,232,138
11,329,267 16,691,799
2,380,968 3,018,532
291,085,092 544,194,884

2024 30 2023 30

(13,315,998)
13,857,033

(37,238,728)

14,740,689

541,035

(22,498,039)
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2.00 0.60

1.60 1.00

2,128,207
2023 2,576,425

1.80 1.20
2024 30 319,255 2023
258,433

22,500

0.02 60,000 15,000
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0.10

0.10

67,500

5,000

2024 30 2023 30

300,000
75,000

112/264



10

11

12

113/264

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 138



EDINETOOOO

OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2024 30
*#
§ 1,088,236
*#
*#
*#
§
34,193 5,533 24,394
746,240 95 757,725
** 34,509,000
780,433 5,628 1,088,236 34,509,000 782,119
*#
§ 1,274,997
*#
*# 24,274
*#
§ 66,452
13,229
497,640 86,574 432,928
521,914 99,803 1,341,449 432,928
258,519 (94,175) (253,213) 34,509,000 349,191
#HT 76,537 34,509,000 283,331
181,982 (94,175) (253,213) 65,860
TBA ** 76,537 123,331
TBA ** 160,000
35,199,180
TBA i (388,194)
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2024 30
*#
§
*#
*#
*# 1,001,680 946,972 149,492
24,965 33,707
212,827
**k
1,001,680 946,972 212,827 174,457 33,707
*#
§
*#
*# 1,546,952 497,231 168,401
*#
10,339 1,440
220,753 194,736
1,546,952 497,231 220,753 373,476 1,440
(545,272) 449,741 (7,926) (199,019) 32,267
#HT (451,333) 420,000 (199,019)
(93,939) 29,741 (7,926) 32,267
TBA i
TBA ** 420,000
TBA il (451,333) (221,858)
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JPMorgan Chase

JPMorgan

Merrill Lynch

Mizuho Capital

Morgan Stanley &

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Markets LLC Co.International PLC
2024 30
* #
§
*#
*#
*# 887,503 156,758 429,493
§
104,384
9,750 36,847
# 2,246,706 1,706 184,548
**k
2,256,456 991,887 156,758 1,706 650,888
* # 18,149
§
* # 248,658
*# 830,729 33,381 66,525
*#
§
135,914
# 1,258,520 12,010 113,584
1,276,669 830,729 33,381 12,010 564,681
979,787 161,158 123,377 (10,304) 86,207
#HT 978,000 161,158 123,377 33,714
1,787 (10,304) 52,493
TBA i 133,989
TBA ** 978,000 233,000 33,714
TBA il
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Markets PLC

and Trust Co.

Toronto-
Dominion Bank
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WestPac

Banking Corp.

2024 30
* 4
§ 1,088,236
* ¢
* ¢
* ¢ 3,571,898
§
104,384
27,566 81,911 37,746 2,799 2,900 322,311
46,696 320,524 4,517,067
o 34,509,000
27,566 81,911 84,442 323,323 2,900 44,112,896
* 18,149
§ 1,274,997
* 4 248,658
* ¢ 3,167,493
* ¢
§ 66,452
458 6,467 167,847
13,263 199,970 3,029,978
13,721 206,437 7,973,574
27,566 81,911 70,721 116,886 2,900 36,139,322
## T 81,911 100,000
27,566 70,721 16,886 2,900
TBA ok 122,397 456,254
TBA o 100,000 1,924,714
35,199,180
TBA o (1,061,385)
*
*%*
.l.
#
#H
8§
457,342
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Bank of Barclays Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
America N.A. Bank PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2023 30
§ 5,715,427
*#
*#
*#
493 23,871 6,077
2,639,074 142 1,609,014
*x 49,859,000
2,639,567 24,013 5,715,427 49,859,000 1,615,091
§ 5,444,964
*#
*# 50,553
*#
8,195 11
2,059,649 9,675 1,837,396
2,118,397 9,675 5,444,964 1,837,407
521,170 14,338 270,463 49,859,000 (222,316)
#H T 521,170 49,859,000 (213,270)
14,338 270,463 (9,046)
TBA i 1,261,430
TBA i
50,856,275
TBA (213,270)
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2023 30
§
*#
* #
* # 2,202,817 1,486,510 646,358
87,407 10,359
29,924 79,015
**%
2,202,817 1,486,510 29,924 812,780 10,359
§
*#
* # 3,656,841 1,186,917 607,390
*#
16,778 3,483
35,536 83,050
3,656,841 1,186,917 35,536 707,218 3,483
(1,454,024) 299,593 (5,612) 105,562 6,876
#H T (1,429,547) 250,000
(24,477) 49,593 (5,612) 105,562 6,876
TBA folal
TBA ** 250,000
TBA il (1,429,547)
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JPMorgan Chase

JPMorgan  Merrill Lynch

Morgan Stanley &

NatWest

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2023 30
§
*#
* #
* # 1,813,014 300,958 930,697
3,624 43,532
# 1,840,679 20,358
**%
1,844,303 1,813,014 300,958 994,587
§
* 4 315,519
* # 1,317,496 54,545 837,716
*#
62,437
10,140 94,121 200,066
# 1,894,231 40,609
1,904,371 1,379,933 54,545 1,287,965 200,066
(60,068) 433,081 246,413 (293,378) (200,066)
#H T 433,081 246,413 (293,378) (120,649)
(60,068) (79,417)
TBA *x 142,102
TBA ** 570,000 115,000
TBA il (294,532) (120,649)
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State Street Bank Toronto- UBS AG WestPac
and Trust Co. Dominion Bank Banking Corp.
2023 30
§ 5,715,427
*#
*#
*# 7,380,354
75,072 35,963 1,851 5,977 294,226
# 3,336 1,474,044 7,695,586
o 49,859,000
75,072 39,299 1,475,895 5,977 70,944,593
8§ 5,444,964
* 4 315,519
*# 7,711,458
*#
62,437
195,122 409 140,708 566 669,599
# 5,447 665,706 6,631,299
195,122 5,856 806,414 566 20,835,276
(120,050) 33,443 669,481 5,411 50,109,317
#H T (110,678) 669,481
(9,372) 33,443 5,411
TBA folal 1,403,532
TBA kel 680,000 1,615,000
50,856,275
TBA ** (110,678) (2,168,676)
*
**
#
#
8§
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Combined statements of financial position

End of each reporting period
April 30

ASSETS
CurrentAssets Hates 2024 2023
Financial assels ol larvabue throupgh profi o foss® L8 12 Sanh 43,138 Sh35,157,539
Sabes of investment s awailing seltiament 8 17774359 118,551,718
Recepaabde bod varstan margin on luluses contracis 4,8 1004, 4
Recetalble forvanation margin on centrally clearad swag contracts 4.8 - X463
interest and athar recoivablos 1, T8 646 506 )
Cash and cash equivaben s 1B 4T 13 8212515
Deprasits with broker 1 3,903,518
Tatal Assets 314,803,238 B6E, 26T, 615
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Finamcial Riabilities at Bairvalus through prolit of loss iAE L7 M2 A0 130,000,220
Purchases of irvestiments swaiting seitbament Bl 3 852 550 R4, 507 A4S0
Redamgtions of unils awalting settlement f L&, 719 113521
Payabile [or vanation MEsgin on Fylunes comracts 48 2437
Payabde lar vaiation maigiin oh cehtrally chesmed swap ool rscts 4.8 253,713
Payable for management foes a% 639,103 PEEF
Payabile for custody and adminkstrative [aes %) 56,009 4,314
Collatesral o corsBaiidod brdl bl Comtract s, ol vahia ) 2380 458 2018 537
Paryabile 1o broker i 13 504
Caher acomed expenses &% 382,153 350,550
Total Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units) 103,880,930 418,455,354
Met Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at bidfask pricés 1.8 $210,922,248 249,828,271
Net Assets attributable to holders of redeermable units of the:
Putnam Diversifed inooms Trust iCaymang 52 li5a5 42T LFC A A |

* Sea Nobe 3alih

Ihe accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statement s

Putnam Diversified income Trust Fueds (Caman) a3
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Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

For the years ended
April 30

OPERATING INCOME[(LOSS) Hotes Fitr ] 2023
interest (rom financial assats and financial iabdlities at faie value through profit o bss 18 811 0056, 5059 1T EIT 392
b realied and changs munresoed gain (oas) of asses and Babiliies in ledeign cumencies 16,7 T8 (21,3
Hed reafized and changs in unreaized gain (lossh on linancial assets and finanoal Babanies a2

wvalue through predit or boss 534,257 (22476 FA
Het imcrease from piyments by alliliates 4] 138
Total eperating income/{loss) 11,597,544 [4,8:20,508)
OPERATING EXPENSES

Management ks 9 LIMaT 1,951 409
Cushoddy fees 9 S B 118,21(
Adminisirative lses 9 50,514 64640
Transder agont feos g 377,344 A 955
Trupsbass e q LIS 1789
Al fees ] o BES 4,130
Cihed expenses 9 BR 033 3150
Reimbursa) lam Manager g 1% 255 {258 433
Tatal operating expenses 3,733,729 4,543,678
Operating prodit/{loss) 7,863,815 (9,364,185}
Finance Costs

stsitations [ holkders of redecmable units ! %305, 157) {10,800 400}
Profit/[Loss) after distributions 1,441,347 (20,465,585)
Increase/(Decrease) in net assets attributable to helders of redeemable units

from operations (51,441,342 {520,465, 586)

Ihe accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statement s
Putnam Diversified Boome Trost Fumds (Cayman) 9
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Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

Met Assets attributable to hodders of redeemable units at the beginning of year

Increase/(Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
frem operations

REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTIONS
Provcareds from anits ssed
Class
ClassM
value of units redeemed
Class d
Class M
Increase/(Decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable wnit transactions
Haet Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the end of year
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The accompanying notes are an intepral past of these financial statements
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For the years ended
April 30
Hotes x4 2023
5245,2828 271 5340012 110
{1,441,342) {20,465 566)
5 535 259608 561
{47,506, ) (35, 175 0808
[ [T T8 A2 (37.511.78%
137, 464,681) (69,718,253
1.4 5200,921,348 5245,828,271
Putnam Diversified income Trust Fuewds (Caman) 10



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000(E40158)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Combined statements of cash flows

For the years ended
April 30
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATINGALCTIVITIES Hotes 024 2023
Increase | Dacreass) in nat assets attribulable 1o holders of redesmable units fram operstions (51,440,343 (50 ARS, 556
ingljustersenl bo seconcibe oserativg prafd dhoss) bae tha lenal pediad 10 nol Cash pencatod Brom)/
(sl i operating activities
Intedes fromlinancial asset s amd Inancial labiines ab G value through prodit or lss 3 {11 ALy 2% I 13T
Mstribations o ihe holders of redeemalds units i 9,305,157 11,100 400
Het amo ization of peaméums 153,588 108 L
Exchange pains,lossas) on cash and cash equivalents (16,778 21,7
(3,209,472 (27,020,178)
Het fmcrease) decreass in sales of iwestment s awaiting seltlement i3 1 TTT.31% 181, 357,006
Het increase idecrease) in purchases of imestmeants awailing settlement an (21006 14, B0 (1,323,904}
e fncreased dacrease in fedoheible laevarialicn manginon hituras contracts 4.8 (104, 2245 143,
et e Sle r\l‘i,l',-l"illll'{i"n'.ltlll"'rﬂr'\hdlI.|l|I:IrII'MI;F_'JrI.I1[!l.'r'\nlr.l||.'l lmared swap conracts 4.8 10463 (50 BAE)
Mot (e resasa] decriases in deposils wath Booker ] s s ]
Hed inrease idecraase) in payable for custody and administrate [Bes B TR, 215 59,248
Hed increase (decrease) in payable forvatiation maggn en futures comracts 4 8 K230 G2Ad!
Het increase idecreasel in payable forarkation margm on centrally cleated swag contracts 1.4 253,013 -
Hed imcreaseNdecrease in payable 1o broket 1 13,54 —
Hed increase idecrease) in payable lor management fees 49 408,883 (542207
e imerese idecraase) in colkatedal on certain deriviive comeacts, value ] 3T S HTEENE
Het imcreases decroase) in payable lor other accreed copenses &4 £ E| 42,005
M (e pea] e reass i Financial assets af Tai value theauph prolit of loss 3,4,8,12 FTOAL A0 04, 278,659
W imcrease ideciease) in linancial labilities st Lair vatue thiough poolin of loss 3.4.8.12 L1003, 568 90 {358 050 B8
Cash flows generated from/{used in) operating activities 49,590,617 18,074,119
Interest recetved 14,352 453 165352 849
Netcash generated from|[used in} operating activities 63,943 AT0 44,706,958
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distritions paid 1o the hodders of redecmable wnits i 305157 (11,10 4000h
Proceads from redeemable units & 410,535 2568 557
Redemgtions of sedeemable units [ (38,259,418 (74,106,047)
Het cash generated from/(used in} financing activities (46,694,040 {62,238,881)
Met increase/{decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 17,249,430 {37,531,913)
Cash and cash equivakents at beginning of year 3.8 B212915 45, Tt 227
Exchange igainsilosses on cash and cash aqusvalents 16,118 {21,79%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1.8 525479123 58,212,915

Ihe accompanying notes are an integral past of these financial statements.

Putriam Diversitied ncome Trust Fumds (Caymman) 11
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Notes to combined financial statements 4/30/24

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the loflowing Notes to combined financial statements, references to "State Street”, i any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Compaiy
and eeferences to “OTC if any, represent over-the counter. References 1o *lunds’ net assets” are based on et assets of $210,922, 248 at Aprid 30,
20024 5249828 271 at April 30, 2023, Unless otherwise noted, the “reporting period™ represents the period from May 1, 2023 theaugh April 30, 2024,

Pulnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund {the "Master Fund®) is a series trust of the Putnam Ofishore Master Seeles Trust {the
“Master Trust™), parsuant to a Master Base Trust Deed dated Aupust 18, 2006 ad a Master Fist Supplemental Toust Deed dated August 18, 2005
betwesen FipstCaribboan International Bank and Trust Cesmpany (Cayman) Limited and The Putnam Advisery Company, LLC (PAC). Putnam
Diversified Ircomes Trust {Cayman (the “Feader Fund ) is a series trustof the Putnam Cishore Feeder Series Trust {the “Feeder Trust™), pursuant
to a Feeder Bage Trust Deod dated July 13, 2005 (32 amended) and a Feeder Supplemental Trust Deed dated July 13, 20056 (s amended) botwesn
MaplesFs Limited and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC, The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered under the Mutual Funds Act (As Revised)
of the Cayman lslands.

The Master Fund and Feeder Funsd operale as a master/teeder lund structure (collectively ithe *lunds®) fsach individually a *fund™) whereby
substantially all of the net assets of the Feeder Fund are invested Inumits of the Master Fund. These combined inancial statements are in respect
of the funds, comprising the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund.

Separate books and records are maintained for each fund in order to determine the net asset valus for the Feeder Fund. The Feeder Fund has the
samainherant risks as the Master Fund.

The manager of the lunds is The Putnam Advisory Company, LEC (ihe *Manages®), a limited Bability company organized under the laws of the Siate
of Delaware, U5 A State Streat (the “Custodian™} is the custodian of the funds.

The invvestment sljoctive of the funds is to seek a3 high a levol of current income as the Manages bolieves is consistent with preservation of
capital, The Manager will seek to achioe the ands” objective by investing mainly in bonds that are seounitized debt instroments and other
abligations of companies and governments worldwide, e eitherinvestment-grade or below investmient-grade (high vield bonds), and have
intermediate to long-term maturities {three years or longerh.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financial statements fave been prepased in compliance with (FRS dccounting Standards as published by the Internatéonal
Accounting standards Board ("1ASE7), The prancipal accounting policies have been applied consistently by the funds for all periods presented,
unbess otherwise stated.

Current petiod and prioe year combined fnancial statements of the funds aee presented on a combined bass as management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund ropeesent one reperting entity given the manrers in which the entities are managed, Roferences fo the
financial statements herealier are to be considerad on acombined basis, Intragroup balances and transactions, incheding income, expenses and
clivichends, are olirminated in full.

The= Manages makes estimates and assumptions concesning the future that may affect the reported amaunts of assets and liabilities. Estimates
are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other lactors, including expectations of fulure events that ae believed to be
reasonable under the ciroumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates and differences could be material.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The follewing is a summany of the significant accounting and reporting policies used in preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements have Bean prepared on a historical cost basis, a2 modilied by the revaluation of financial assats and labRlities das-
sified at Fair value through profit or less, The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS, requires management to make esti-
miates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the finandial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates,

{a) Financial instruments

(i} Classification

The Master Fund classifies its investmients based on both the Master Fund's business modi for managing those linancial assets and the
cotitractual cash fow characteristics of the financias assets. The porthalio of financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated ona
fadr value basis., The Master Fund & primarily focused on lair valus infosmeation and wses that information 1o assess the assets’ porlormance
and to make decisions. The Master Fund has not Laken the aption lodrmevecably desiinate any equily securities as falrvalue through othar
comprehensive inoome. The contractual cash flows of the Master Fund's debt securities are solely prindgpal and interest, however, these
secusrities are not hald for the purpose of colbecting contractual cash flows, The callection of contractual cash lows ks only incidental o
achieving the Master Fund's usiness model's objective. Consequently, all investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss,
Defivative contracts that have a hegative Fair value we presented o abilities at fair valise heough profit of loss, As sudh, b accordance with
IFRS 9, the Master Fund classifies all of its investment portiolio as finandial assets o labilities at fairvalue theough pralit orloss,

Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds (Cayman) 12
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{ii) Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of ivestments s recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Master Fund comimits to purchase o sefl the
Investrment. Investments are derecopnized whon the rights o receive cash llows from the investments have expired and the Mastas Fund
has translerred substantially 2l risks and rewards of cwnership. Securities purchased or sold on a delayed defivery basls may be settled at
a hutura date beyoend customary setifement timea;, Interest income ks accrued based on the lorms of the securlties, Losses may arise due to
chanpes in the fair value of the undeslying securities or if the counterparnty dees not perform undes the contract,

Purchases and sales of invastments awaiting settbement represent payables for secwities purchased and receivables o securities sobd
that have been contracted lor but not yet setiled or deliverad on the staternent of inandal position date respectively. The dua fram
brokers balance, if any, Is held lor collection, These amounts are recognised initially at fa value and subsequently measured at amaortised
cosk. At each repor ting date, tha Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amousnt equal Lo the
lifetirme xpectod crodit basses if the credit risk has incessed significantly nce intial recognition. I, atthe reporting date, the credit risk
has net increased significantly since initial recognition, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allewance al an amount equal to 12-month
expeched credit losses. Signiticant linancial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptoy or financial reorgand-
satlon, and delault in payments are all considered indicators that aloss allowance may be required. If the credit sk increases to the poaint
that it is considerad te be credit impaired, interest incomewill be caloulated based on the gross camyéng amound adjusted for the loss
allowance, & significant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is more than 30 days past due,
Any contractual pavment which is moee than 90 days past due is consid ered oredit impained.

{iii) Measurement

Financial assats and Financial liabaites at fair value theough peofit or loss ane inltially recognized at fairvalue, Transaction costs ane
recorded in the Statements of comprehensive income [Boss) as part of the et realized and change inunrealized gaindlosst an financial
assets arwd Enancial liabilities at i value through prolit o loss, Subsequent Lo initial recognition, a8 financial ascets at Faie value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘Financlal Assets or Financial
Liahilities at lair value throwugh profit o los<” catepory are presented inthe Statements ol comprehensive income {loss) in the pariod in
wihich they arise,

Iarket quotations are nod conzidered 1o be readily avallable for certain deba oblipations (including short-tenm investments with remaning
maturities of &0 days or less) and cther Imvestments; such investments are valued on the basis of valuations furnished by anindependent
pricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Manager, Such services or dealers determine valuations for normal
Institutional size trading undts of such securities using methods based on market transactions lor comparable securities and varlous rela-
ticnships, penerally recopnized by institutional traders, between securitios fwhich consider sudh factors as security prices, yields, matur-
Ities and ratingsy. These securities will genesally be categorized as Level 2, Certain securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided
by asingle source. Socurities quated Inforeign currencies, H any, are translated into LS, Dollars at the curment exchange rate,

The cjusoted mrarket pices used for financial assets held by the Master Fussd are the cutient bid price; the appropaiate quoted masket prce
used for the financial liabilities is the cument asking price, howeaer quoted market prices for both inancial assets and financial akslities
feded iy (all withie the bid ek spread.

To theextent a pricing service o deal er is unable to value a seosity or provides a valuation that the Manages does net beliews accu
rately reflects the security's fair vahue, the security will bevalued at fair value by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures
approved by the Manager. Certain investments, indluding certain sestricied and illiquid secuities and derivatives, are also valued at fair
value foliowing procedures approved by the Manager. These valuations consider siech factons as sipnificant markel or spedlic security
events such as Imterest rate or credit quality changes, various relationships with other securities, discount rates, U5, Treasury, LS, swap
and cradit yields, index levels, convexity exposures, recover y rates, sales and other multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are
classified as Level 2 of as Level 3 depending, on the priority of the significant inputs.

Investments in collective or other Investment funds are valued with reference to thed respective net asset value per unit on the relevant
valuation date.

For the years ended April 30, 2024 and April 30, 2023, no securnities of dervatives were lair valued by the Manager.

{b) Off-setting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reparted in the Statements of finandal position when thera is a legally enforceable
right to off-sel the rocopnized amounts and thereds an ifention to ssttle on a net basis, or roealize the asset and settle the liabdity simultaneousiy.

{e) Income from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest s recognised on a me-propo tionate basis using the eflective interestimethod. Interest income includes interest Irom cash and cash
equivalents. IMerest from linancial assels at falr value through profit or boss Includes interest from debt securities. Income recaived rom collective
or atherinvestment funds is recorded on the ex-dale and retain the character of income as eamaed by the underlying investment. All premdums/
dizcounts are amortized/accreted on ayield-to-matwity basls. The Master Fund eamed certain lees in connection with It senior boan paechasing
activitics, These fees are treated as market discount and are amed tized inte income in the Statements of comgrehensive incomiz (lass),

{d) Distribution palicy
Distribastions to the unitholders iom operating profitfloss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to unitholders of the Feeder Fund, sulbject to the
approval of the Manager, Incomae distribations, If any, will be made menthly, Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fund ase recognlzed as a

Putriam Diversitied Income Trust Fumds (Cayman) 13
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finance cost in the Statements of comprehensive income {loss). tstributions from capital gains, ifany, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and
paicl at beast annually.

{e} Cash and cash equivalents

Cansh comyises curnent depaosits with banks, induding lersgn currencies, Cash equivatents are short-tesm highly liguid ivestments that are
readiby comvertilile (o known amounts of cash, are subject to an insigniticant risk of changes invalue, and are held for the parpose of meeting
shog t-term cash needs rathes than for Investments o olther purposes, Bank overdralls, i any, are shown as payable to custodian in the
Statements of financial position,

April 30
Cash and cash equivalents 2004 2003
Faraign cash 5— 426
uskcash 137,058 175,144
Cashequivabanis 75,340.954 A037,345
Total cash and cash equivalents $25,479,123 58,212,915

{f) Repurchase agreements

The Mastier Fund, through its custodiae, recelves deliveny of the underlying securities, the fin value of wiich at the time of purchase s requined 1o
b irw am armcunt at loast aqueal 1o the resale price, induding acemed imerest, Collateral for cor tain tei-party repurchase agresments, which totaled
235,199, 180 (M2 3: 550,856,2 15) af the end of the reparting period, s held a1 the counterpar ty's custodian in asegregated acoount for the benelit
of the Master Fund and the countesparty. The Manager s responsible for detesmining that the value of these undelying securities is at all times at
least edual to the resale price, including acorued interest, In the event of default or banknuptoy by the other party to the agresment, retenticn of
thecallateral may be sulject to legal proceedings.

{g) Stripped securities

The Master Fund mey vest in stipped securiies which repres ent a participation in securities that imday be strsctuied In classes with rights to
receive different portions of the interest and principal Interest-only securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of
the prindpal, [Ethe interest-only securities experience greates than anticipated prepayments of prind pal, the Mastes Fund may [all to recoup full y
its initial imvestment in these securities, Comversely, principal -only securities increase in value if prepaymments are greater than anticipated and
decline il prepayments are slower than anticipated. The air value el these securities is highly sensitive to changes ininferest rates,

{h) Fereign currency translation

{i} Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting recards of the Master Fund and Feader Fund ate maintainad in U.S. Dollars, the cumrency Inwhich they receive subscrip-
tiens.and lacilitate redemptions of thelr redeamatle unils. The Manager considers the U5, dollar the currency that most aithiully
represants the ecanomic efect of the underhying tansactions, events and conditions. Thall.s, dolla is the currency inwhich the funds
measure their pertarmance and repart thenesults, This determination also considens the compatitive endronments in which the funds
are compared to other investment products. The inancial statements are prasentad in LS, dellars.

{ii} Transactions and Balances

Foraign currency transactions are translated into the hunctionat currency using the exchanpe rates prevalling at the dates of the transac-
ticns. The cost of each security |5 determined using historical exchange rates. Income, expenses and withholding taxes are translated at
prevailing exchange rates when earned or Incurred, The Master Fund does not isolate that pertion of reatlzed or unrealized gains o losses
resubting from changes in the loreign exchange rate on ivestments froon fectuations arising from changes in the market prices of the
securities. Foreipn exchange pains and losses arising rem banslation and lorefpn exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash
equivalents are presented In the Statements of comprehensive Income {loss) as Net realined and change inunreallzed gaingloss) of assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies. Translation differences an looward currency contracts and nen-menetary linancial assets and Babilities
such as equities at fair value through profitand boss are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive incoms (o) as Net realized and
change inunrealized gaingloss) on financial assets and financial Babilities at fair value thiough profit o foss. Investment s in forefgn secu-
rities invelve cartain risks, including those related to ecomomic instability, unfzvorable political developments, and currency Tuctuations,
not present with domestic investments,

{i} TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into TBA (1o be announced} commitment s o purchase securkties Tor a flxed unit price at a luture date beyond
customary settlesnant tirme, Altbough the wnit price and par amsount bove Been estabdiched, the actual seciritios have net Boen spocified.
Howeever, it is anticipated that the amount of the commitments will not signilicanthy differ irom the principal amount, The Master Fund holds, and
malntalns until settlioment date, cash or hiph-grade debt obligations in an amount suffldent to meet the pueschase price, or the Master Fund mizy
enterinte oflsetting contracts far the larward sale of other secumities itowns, Income on the securities will ot b2 earmed until settlement date,

The Mastar Fund may also enter into TBA sale commitments to hedpe s portlolio positions, to sell mortgapge-backed securities it owns under
delayed delivery asvangements of to take a short pesition in morigage-backed securities, Froceeds of TBA sale commitments are not recebeed
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undil the contractual settlement date, During the time a TEA sale commitment (s catstanding, either equivalent deliverable securities or an oftset
fing THA purchiase commitment deliverable on or before the sale commitment date are held as *cowver™ bor the transaction, or other liquid assetsin
an armount equal to the notional valee of the TBA sale commitment ae segregated. i the TBA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition
of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realizes a gain or loss. Il the Master Fund delivers secorities under the commitrment,
thia Master Fund realizes a gain or aloss liom the sale of the securities based upon the unit price established at the date the commitment was
entered fnlo.

TBA commitments, which are accounted for as punchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities themselves, and involve a risk of loss
thue to changes in the value ol the security prios bo the settlement date as well a5 the risk that the counterparty to the transaction will not perform
its obligations. Counterparty sk & mitlgated by having a master agreement between the Master Fund and the counterpasty,

Unzettled TES commitments are valued at their fairvalue according to the procedures described under “Measurement™ above. The contract is
rmarked to markel daily and the change in fair value is recordied by the Mastes Fund as an unrealized gain or loss. Based on market dicurmstances,
the Manages will detarming wivether to take defivery of the underlying securities or to dispose of the TRA commitments prics to setthement,

4. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Berivative contracts may serve as a component of the Master Fund's investment strategy and are utillzed primarily to structure and economicatly
hedge Investments to enhance perfermance and reduce risk to the funds, o for other investment purposes. The Master Fund does not designate
any denivatives ashedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS9 and hence these derivative financial instruments are classi
fiesd at fair value through profitor loss, The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may bald or issue include, but are not limited o, forwards,
futures, options, cerlain currency ransactions and swap conliacts,

The Master Fund may enter into options conteacts, Losses may arfse from changes in the value of the ussdeorbying instraments ifthene is an illiquicd
secendary matket for the contracts, itinterest or exchange rates move unespectedly of if the counterparrty te the contract i unalble o perform. I
awritten call option is exencsed, the premium originglly received is recorded as an addition to sales proceeds, Ifawritten pal option is exercised,
the premium originally receivad is recorded as areduction to the costol investments. Exchangie-traded options are valued at the kst £ale price
or, i no sales arereported, the last bid price (or purchased options and the last ask price for written options. OTC traded options are valued using
prices supplied by dealers, Cptions on swaps are similar to options on securitles except that the premium pald oo recelved is to buy or grant the
right o enter into a presiously apreed upan Interest rate o credit deladt contract, Forward premium swap option contracts inchude peemiums
that have extonded settlement dates. The delyyed setflement of the premivens is factofed into the dally valustion of the epticn contracts. in

the case of interest rate cap and lleor contracts, in return lof a premium, engaing payment s between two parties are based oninterest rates
exceaeding aspecifiod rate, i the case of acap contract, af falling below a specified rate in the case of a lloof contract,

The Master Furid may enles inte futures contracts. Losses may aise fiom changes in the value of the underlying instruments, ifthere is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, ifinterest or eschange rates move uneapectedly of if the countenparty fo the comtract i anatde to perform.
With futures, there is minimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since futures are exchange taded and the exchange’s dlearinghoase, as coun-
terparty to Al exchanpe raded futures, puatantees the lutures apainst default. Risks may exceed amounts recognired on the Statemaents of firan-
cial position, When the contract is closed, the Master Fund reconds arealized gain or loss equal 1o the difference batween the value of the contract
at the tme it was opemed and the value at the time it was closed, Futures confracts are vahued at the quated dally settlement prices estatdished
by the exchange onwhich they trade. The Master Fund and the broker agree to exchange an amount of cash equal to the dally fuctuation in the
value of the fultres conteact, Such receipts ar payments are Known as “variaticn mangin.”

The Master Fund may buy and sell borward currency conbiacts, which are apreements between two parties to bay and sell currencies at a set
price-on afuture date, The U5, dollar value of lorward curtency contracts (s determined using curtent forward currency exchange rates supplied
by a quotation service. The fair value of the contd act will Muctuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The contract is marked to market
claily and the change in fair value is recorded as an unaealized gain or lass, The Master Fund reconds asealized gain or lossequal o the difference
betwesn the value of the coniract al the time it was opened and the value at the tima it was dosed when the centract matures or by delivary of
the curmency. The funds could be exposed to risk il the vatue of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counterparties to the contracts are unable
to meal the terms of thelr contracts or if the Master Fured is unable to enter into a closing position. Risks may excesd amounts recognized on the
Statemnents aof financlal position,

Thee Master Fund mey arter inito OTC and for contrally cleared interest rate swag contr acts, which are arrangements balwsen two parties (o
exchange cash llows based on a notional principal amount. An OTC and centrally dearad Interest rate swap can be parchased or sobd with an
updrent premium, For OTC interest rate swap contracts, an uplront payment recelved by the Master Funed I recorded as a llabdlity on thie Master
Fund’s books. An uplrent payment made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books, OTC and centrally cleared
inderest Fate swap conliacts ane marked be market daily based ugon quotations from an independent peicing sefvice a imarket mmakiors. Amy
champe s recorded as anunreatized gain or boss on OTC interest vate swages, Daily flesctuations in the value of centrally cleared interest rate swaps
are settled through a central dlearing agent and are generally recorded in variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded
as unrealized gain or loss, Payments, including uplront premiums, recefved or made are record ed as realived gains or losses at the reset date o
the closing of the contract. Certain OTC and centrally cleared Interest rate swap contracts may include extended effective dates, Payments refated
tor these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The unds could be exposed to credit or markel risk due to unfasorable
changes In the lluctuation of interest 1ates or [fthe counterparty delaudts, in the case of OIC intevest rate contracts, or the central dearing agency
or aclearing member dedaults, inthe case of contrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, o its respective obligation to perform under the
conkrack. The lunds' maximusn risk of less from oounterpar by risk or central clearing risk is the [air viue of the condract. This risk may be mitigated
for OTC interest rate swap contracts by having a master netting amanpgement between the Master Fund and the counterparnty and for cenlrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts theough the dally exchange of variation margin, There is minimal counter party isk with respect to centrally
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cleared interest rate swap contracts due to the clearinghowse guarantee fund and other resources that are avallable In the event of a clearing.
rrember defaull, Risk of loss may excesd amownts recogriized on the Statements of inan cisd position. AL the dlose of the reporting period, the
Master Fumd has deposited cash valued at 52822 476 ina segregated acooum Lo cover margin requirements on opencentrally cleared imterest
rate swag contracts

Thee Master Fund meay enter into OTC and/for centrally cleared tolal returm swap contracts, which are airangements 1o exchange a market: linked
retum for a periodic payment, both based on a notional principal amoaant. To the extent that the total returm ol the security, index or otier finan-
clal measure underlying the ransaction exceeds or falls short of the olfsetting Interest rate abligation, the Master Fund will receive a payment
Fraaim af make a payinent to the counterparty, OTC and/for centrally cheared tatal returm swag contiacts arne mad bed te mad ket daily based upon
guestations lnom an independent pricing service o market makens, Any change is recoaded as an uneealized gain or loss on OTC ttal relur i Sswaps.
Daily Mlasctustions in the value of centrally cleanad total returm swaps are soblled through a central clearing agent and are generally recorded in
variation margin on the Statements of financial pasition and recarded as unrealized gain oo loss. Payments recelved or made are recorded as
realized gains of losses, Certain OTC and/fer centrally dleared total retunn swap confracks may indude extended effective dates. Payments redated
£ Hhesee swap contracts ane accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to coedit or market risk due to unlavorables
champes in the luctuation af interest rates or in the price ol the underlying security or index, the possibility that there s no liquid masket for these
agresments of hat the counterparty may default on its obligatéon o perform, The funds” maximum risk of boss from counterparty sk or central
clearing 1lsk is the falr value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC total retusn swap contracts by having a master netting arrange-
rnent between e Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleased total refusm swap-contracts through the dasly exchange of variation
margin. There s minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally deared total return swap contracts due to the cearinghouse guarantae fund
and ether resouwrces that are available in the event of a clearing member default, Risk of loss may exceed amounts recopnized on the Statements
of fimancial position,

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/or centrally cleared credit default contracts. In OTC and centrally cleared credit dedault contracts, the
protection buyer typically makes a perbodic stream of payments to a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchangs for the right to receive a
contingent payrment upon the ecourrence ol a credit event on the reference obligation or all other equally ranked cbligations of thereference
entity, Credit events are contract specilic but may inclede bankruptoy, fallue 1o pay, restructuning and eblipation acceleration, For OTC credit
default contracts, an upfront payment recedvad Dy the Master Fund is recordied as a lability on the Master Fund's books. Anupfrent payment
miade by the Master Fund is recorded as anasset on the Master Fund's books. Centrally cleared credil default contracts provide the same rights
to thee pratection buyes and seller except the payments between parties, including uplront premiums, are settled through a central dlearing agent
through variation margin payments, Uplrent and pericdic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centrally cleared credit
default contracts are recorded as realired gagns or losses at thereset date or close of the contract, The OTC and centrally cleared cradit default
conitracts are miarked tomarket dadly based upon quotations from an independent pricing servioe on market makers, Any changein vabue of

OTC eredit defaull contracts is recorded as anunrestized gain or loss. Daily fluetuations inthe value of centrally cleased cradil delault contracts
are generally recorded in variation margin on the Statements ol financlal position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss, Upon the occmrence
of @ credit event, the difference betwaeen the par value and fair ealue of the relerence obligation, net of any proportional amaunt of the uplroent
payment, is recornded a5 a realized gain of loss, Inaddition to bearing the risk that the credit event will scour, the funds could b expased to market
rigk due 1o inlavar abde changes in iterest rates o in the price of the undielying security or index or the possibility that the Master Fuid may be
unate to close oul Its position at the same time o at the same price as it had purchased the underlying reference obligations. In certain circum
stances, thi Master Fund may enter Into offsetiing OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss, Risks
of less may excesd amournts recopnized on the Statements of financial position, The funds” masimum risk of loss from courderparty risk, eithes
as the profection seller o as the protection buyer, is the falrvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC cradit defaudt contracts by
heving a master matting arrangement between the Master Fund and the coumterparty and lor centrably cleared cradil dafault contracts through
the dally exchange of variation margin, Counterparty rlsk i further mitigated with respect te centrally cleared credit default swap contracts due
to thee cleasinghouse guarantes femd and ather rescarces thad are available in the event of a clearing membier dofadt, Where the Master Fund

Is asaller of protection, the masimum potential amount of luture payments the Master Fund may be required to make 15 equal to the notional
amount, At the closeof the reparting period, the Master Fund has deposited cashivalued al $1,081,072 Ina segregated account To cover margin
recpErmients o open centrally cleared crodit default contracts.

Income related to swap contractsis acorued based on the terms of the contract. Receivables and payables related to closed swap contracts
are presented in the Financial assets er Financial labilities at fals value threugh prefit or loss line items on the Statements of linancial position,
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on devivative contracts areincluded in Met realized and chargse inoamrealized paindloss) on linancial
assals and linanciat labilities al falr value through profit orloss,

Thee neationea amourts of certain types of finandcial instruments provide a basis (or compagison with instruments recognized on the Statements
of limancial position, but they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of luture cash Hlows involved o the current falr value of the instruments
and do not therelore Indicate a fund's exposure to credit or market price risks, The dervative instruments become favorable (assets) o unfavor-
abde (liabilities) a5 & reslt of lTuctuations of markel prices.or fareign exchange rates relative ta their lerms, The apgregate contractual o notional
amount of derivative linandal instrurments on hand, the extent tewhich instruments are favorable or unlavorable, and thes the apgregate (i
values of derivative inancial assets and Babllities can fectuate signilcantly rom tme to tme.

5. TAXATION

The Master Fund imvests in securilies isswed by entitios which are primarily domiciled in countries other than thae Caymmarn Eland s, Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws that indicate thal capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents, such as the hnds. Typlcally, these

capital gains taxes are required to be detenmined on a sell-assessment basls and, therefore, such tases may not be deducted by the Master Fund's
brakers ana withhobding basis,
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Inaccordance with 145 12 —incarme Tauees, the funds ane required to recognize a tax lability when i is probable that the tax laws of foreign coun-
fries pequire a tax liability to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced (rem such loreign country, assuming the relevant taxing authorities
have full knovdedpe of all the lacts and circumstances. The tax Bability iz then measured at the amount expected o be paid to the relevant
taxation authorlties using the tax laws and rates thal have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reposting perod, There s
sommatimes uncetainty about whether of mot a tax lability will ubtimately be pagd by the funds, Therefore, whien messaning any gacertain tax
liabdlities management considers all of the relevant facts and ciroumstances available at the time which couldinfluence the likelihood of payment,
including any format orinformal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

AL AETL 30, 2004 and Apnil 30, 2003, the lunds had no sighificant unces tain L Hability positions with respect Lo fareign capital gains taxe,

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

Al the and of the reporting perlods, Aprll 30, 2024 and April 30, 7023, the Master Fund had Class S and Class | Units avallable fos issue, Undess the
Manager determines cthenwise, the minimum initial investmen? for Class 5 is 300 Unlts and theminimum subsequent subscription shall be 10
Units, providod that the absolate minimum initial imestrments shid | be US550,000 or S equivalent in the relesant subscriplion currency. Unloss
the Manager determines otherwise, the minimum numiber of Class | Units that can be subscribed for by way of Initial Investment shall be 1,000,000
Units, the minimum apgregate value of the initial investment shall be US510,000,000 and the minimum rumiber of Units that can be subscribed for
by weay oof sulbsequeent investrment shall be 10,000 Lnits, The absobute manimum aggregate value of the initis investment in Class | Units that the
Manager may detenmine shall e LSS50 00

The Feeder Fund has unlimited Units of capital. Each Unit will represent an undivided beneficial intesesi in the Feeder Fund. MaplesFS Limited
(the “Feader Fund Trustes"), at the direction of the Manager, shall have the power to designate and (520 Units from time to time by relerence to a
separate Class and/or series and detenming the manmer inwhich Units of any Class andfor serfes differ from Units of any other Class andfor series.
The Feeder Fund currently has two Classes of Linits, Class §and Class M Units, which ane investors into Class S of the Master Fund, Class M Units
are sold with a maximum front-end sales dharge of 2.25% and do not pay a contingent deferred sales charge (C0SC). Class ) Units do ned pay a
Front-end sales charpe and are subject 10 a COSC of up 1o 4.00% i those Units are redeermed within five years of purchase. Unless the Manager
determines atherwise, the minimum Initial investment for Class H{COSC) and Class M Unlts shall be 200 Units and the minimem subsequent
subseriptions shall be 10 Units,

The net asset vabue of each class Is caloulated by dividing the net assels attributable to the holders of redeemat#e units of a particular class o
units, with the tatal number of outstanding redeemable undt s of that class, In accordance with the provisions of the lunds’ poverning documents,
inwestment positions are valued based on the bid/ask market price ler the purpose of determining the net assell value per unit for subscriptions
and redempdions. Proceeds and payments for redeemable participating units issued and redeemed ase shown as movements in the Statemants
of changes Innel assets atiributable 1o holders of redesmable particlpating units, The Feeder Fund generally provides its unithedders with the
right to redeom their intesestin the Feedor Fund at any dealing date (genecally daily) for cash equal to e propor tionate share of the net assel
value of the Feeder Fund. The Manager, the Transfer Agent or other delegate of the Manager reserves the right to neject any application lor Units
without stating any reason for doing so. The Feeder Fund issues redesmabde units, which are redeematsle a1 the bolders option and are classified
as [inancial Habflities. The redeemable units are carried al the redemption ameount that s payable at the end of the reporting perod, B the holder
ooprcises the right to put the unit back to the funds,

Lindt transacticns for the years were as kallows:

Master Fund Class s Class|
April 20 April 30
04 013 2024 013
Unirs autstanding at beginning ol yes 35,285,540 45546515 1085 1,086
Units lssued 15,352 211,235 - -
Units pdossrned I5.TESETE (10,8852 300) "
Units cutstanding atend of year 19,555,216 35,265,540 1,086 1,086
Feader Fund Class ) Class M
April 30 April 20
1024 1023 2024 2023
Units outstanding at beginning ol yea 33,704,130 0,084 AR5 136 a0 19,973,560
Units issued - - 174 580 548810
Units peclesrmed 5,238,745 (6, 85,355 {207 7.955) 6,20 A400)
Units cutstanding at end of year 18,060,365 33,299,130 11,710,015 13,612,990

At AR 30, 2004, 100% of the Feeder Fund's Class | and Class M redeemable units were held by cne unailiated investor (2023; 100%a). At April 30,
2024, 1008 of the Master Fund's Class S redeemable units wiene held by the Feedor Furnd (2023; 10096, At Al 20, 2004, 100% of the Mastor Fund's
Clirss | redeemabde units were held by an affiliate of the Manages (2023 100%).
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7. DISTRIBUTIONS

Bistribations to the unitholders are made at the discretion of the Manager in an amount and at such time as determined to be apgroprlate. At the
end af the reponting periad, dividends pald by the Master Fund Class 5 amaunted to 53,215,803 or 50 2872 per undt (2073 511,12 1,640 or 50,2842
peer umith, At the end of the repoerting period, there were ne dividends padd to Class | (2023 SNl

At the and af the reporting perlod, dividends pald by the Feeder Fund Class Fand Class M amounted to 56,206,615 o 50,204 perunit (1023:
51,271,833 or 50,204 per unit) and 53,028,547 or 50054 per unit {2022 53,829,568 or 50.24 per unit), respectively, Distributions from the Feedes Fund
are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive income (oss) as.a finanoe cost.

B. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fundks have investment guidelines that set out thedr overall business strategles, thedr tolerance lor risk and their general risk management
philesapby. The ends™ financial assets and labdities at fai valie compeise the Master Fund's fimancial instuiments which may include;

= Imvestments including fixed-Income securitles, lloating rate securitles and equity securitles;
= Bonds that are seouritized debt Instruments and other obllgations of companles and governments worldwide,
«  Cashand short-term investiments; and

Deivative transaetions which the Master Fund snters into to manage e interest ate and corrency tieks arising rom te Master Fund s
Imvastment activities,

{a) Market price risk

While 1t s the iIntentlon of the Manager to Implement strategies which are deslgned 1o minlimize potentlal losses, there can be no assurance that
these strateghes will be successful, ILis possiblo thist an ivestor may lose a substantial propottion o all of its Investment, As a result, each ivestor
should carefully consider whether it can alfosd to bear the risk of investing in the funds.

The funds are exposod to market risk fwhich incudes market price sk, forsign csrency risk, intesestrate risk), liquidity risk and credit or default
risk. The lunds’ rizk managament process consists ol a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks and batances.
The Manager perfonms perfodic reviews and agrees on palicies for managing aach of these risks and they are summarised balow. These policies
have remainad substantially unchanpad since the beginning of the period towhich these linandcial statements relate,

Marleet risk arises mainly rom uncertalnty about future préices of financial instruments heid, It represents the patential boss the funds might suffer
through helding market pesiticns in the e of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investment or factors aflecting all
instrurnents traded in the market. The Manager considers the asset allocation of the funds in order to minimize the risk associated with particular
countries ot industry sectors while continuing to follow the funds” rvestment objective through a carell selection of securities and othes finan-
cial instruments within specified limits, Markat risk can also potentially be mitigated through dervative contracts entered into by the hends. The
Manager measures both the Master Fund's 1otal risk as well as their risk of undes perfosmance versus their stated benchmark.

Linder noomal market conditions, the Manager expects bo imest 15%-65% of the Master Fund's net assets in each of these three sectors; L3,
and Fvestment-grade sector - LLS. govorriment secuiities and investisent-grade bends of LS, companies, High weld soctar - lowerratid
beaanels of LS, companies, and Intermational sector - bonds of foreign governments and companies, inchuding both imvestment grade amd
levwvar-rated securities.

At the end of the reporting period, investiments in LS. securities were approxdmately 8296 (202 % approximately @ 1%).
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At the end of the reporting periods, the funds” noticn al exposure on desivative contract s was as lollows:

April 30

W04 w033
Purchased interest rate swap aplicn confrects (Conlact amaunty S303, 363,344 $EI3E0T 061
Wiitten inenest rate swap oplion coptracts ontiact amaunt) 1G] §T25,584,30%
Fufures contracts {namber ol contracish 314 436
Forward cureency contracts fconliact amaunt) * 419,080,537 432 563817
OTC irbenest rate swag contracts (notional) 4h210,58] =
Centrally cheared imeqest rate swapcontracts inctionaly $653 501,248 $3,058,340,325
OTC total return swap conlracts dnational) 54,355 457 S, 355 A2
O cresdit datlaui contriects - protection purchased inotional) 513,501,873 S23A65E
OTC cresfit delaull contracts - pratectian sald dvetionalk 512687921 SMARSIT
Carmralty cheared credit delaull contracts - gratection sokl meoticnal) $13.000, 00 G

* Farthe pericds ended Apeil 30, 2004 and April 30, X003, the Mastes Fund did not hase notianal exposure, inexcess ol 10%, as a parcent of net assels, Thene are

o cther concentrabions to currency risk inemoess of 10% of net assets asa resull of forward dervative notionals,

** Farthe reporting period, the Master Fund held LS. Treasury securities and a Euro-Bobl secutity with number of contracts totaling 280 and 34, and notional
armoans tegaling $54, 247,937 and 34,232,754, respecipaly (2023 LS, Treasury secuiities with number of contracts lotaling 436 and notional amaunts

totaling S97.515,625,

The volume of activity for the reporting periods bor any dervative type that was held during the period is listad below and was as follows based on

an average of the holdings at the end of each fiscal quarter;

April 30

W4 W13
Purchised swap oplion Contracts antract amount) 490,500,000 $1,152, 200,000
N swap aption comeacts (contract amaunt) §449,700,000 S48, 00,000
Futunes conlracts (rimbser ol conlracks) *° A0k =00
Forward cursency confracts (conlract amaunt) 34 300 000 S50, 500,000
O interast ralo swagrooniracls inotional) S940 00 G
Centrally cheared infenest rate swap contracts inoliamalh 51,053, 100 00 5258, OO0
OIL total return swap contracts fnotional) Seb 400 (X} £ A0 D00
O copddit delault contracts inctianal) 535,600,000 S50, 00,000
Centrally cheared cradit defaull contracts inotional) S8 000 00 52 3000000

** Forthe reporting period, averape of the Futies holdings at notional values was 13,500, 000{202: §1 1 1000,0040).

Apgregate Value at risk

The ¥alue al Risk (val]) risk measure estimates the maximum expected loss in pee-taxation prodit as a percenitape of the und's nel as<els over a
glven holding period for a specified confidence level. The YaR methodalogy |5 a statistically defined, probability-based approach that takes into
accaunt markel velatilities as well as risk diversification by recognizing offsetting positions amvd correlations between products and markets, Risks
can be measwed consistently across all markets and products, and risk measures can be aggregated to arive at a single risk numbsr. Given the
Interdependendes between market vasiables, the Mastes Fund also estimates the VaR or threshold bess that s not expacted to be exceeded at the
Sath percentite confidence level over a 1-day horizen, The Manages uses a progrietary multi-factor model to estimate the active risk (also referred
ko as trackeng eeror) fram which Vall estimates can be analytically derived. Thie VaR estimates presented below aie pobnt-in-tine and vary ovee
time a5 a function of market amd portclio composition changes and are representative of activity during the period.

Givern it reliance on historical data, Vak is mostelfoctive in estimating sk exposunes in market s inwhich thereare no sudden fundamental
chanpes or sudden shifts In markel conditicns. Aninherent Bmitation of VaR ks that the distribution of past changes in market risk factors may
ned produce acourate predictions of future risk. Different Vak methodologies and distributional assumgtions could produce a materially different
Wal. Moreover, VaR caloulated for a one-day time horizon does not lully captuse the market sk of positions that cannot be liguidated o offset
with hedpes within cne day, Changoes in VaR between ropor ting pericds se generally due o changesin levels of exposuse. volatilities andor
correlations among asset dasses.
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The tabde below shows the VaR of the Master Fund dor both start and end of the review period,

Partfolie Benchmark® ** Ratio**®
April 30, 2024 093 na na
April 30, 2023 &1 nia nia

* ICE Beofi LS, Troaswry B Index
** Thex Master Fund uses a cash equecalent benchmark, thereone YaR of the benchimark and VaR ratio are not elevant,

The Bactor risk breakdawm for the Master Fund lor both start and end of the review period is presented in the Labile befow. The risk decomiposition
Is based on expectad annuallzed volatility {1 standard desation, Active Risk (or Estimated Tracking Error “TE™) measures the pradicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference Between the portfelio and the benchmark using the current positions of aach and the risk madel's factor
covarianoe matrii

Partfolio Bernchrmark® Estimated TE
April 30, 2024 Total Risk 1] 17 60
April 30, 2023 Total Risk 553 lir e 53

* ICE Bola LS, Treasury Bill Index

{b) Curremcy risk
Currency risk is the risk that the (aic vabue or future cash bows ol a financial instrument will luctuate due to changes in loreign exchange rates. The
risk arises on [Inancial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the lunctional currency in which they are measamed. A portion

of thee funds” assets are hebd in currencies ather than the base currency with the resadt that the funds” Statements of inancial position can be
significantly affected by curency mavements,

Mon-base currency exposures iexchuding the notlonal Impact of forward currency confracts) are detalled In the tables below. Monetary assets
represent imestments that can be converted into monetany terms in a very short period of time, Inthe tables betow, Bon-Monetary assets include
the Lair value of the Mastar Fund's porifelic ivestiments, Monetary assets and labilities indude the unrealized appreciation and deprediation ol
TEA sale commitments and desivative contracts. Forward owrrency contracts are entered o as a metbod of reducing currency risk,

Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2024

Assets Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Australian Dallar §— £1.945, 871 51454871
British Paund = 15,779 15,7749
Canadian Dallas 9571 G571
Crach Koiuna = Pk 242
Eurar SALLELT 674,01 GABGGAT
Hew Eealand Doftar = 21454 21454
Horwegian Kione - 195,240 195,20
Sauth Kerean Waon - 1942 3,942
Sweedish Krona — 138,185 128,185

55,812,617 53,084,440 58,897,057
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Liabilities Hon-Monetary Monetary Total
Amstralian Dollae $ LT84 5676 LTBA6TE
Bragilian Heal - % 45
British Pound - AN AT
Canadian Dollas - 3936 3926
Chilesan Peso = 1375 1,375
Chinese Yisan {nshone) - 401 40071
Colomibian Paso - 2441 2441
Eurg - 555.11% 535119
Humgaeian Forim - 18,372 18,372
Inlican Rugpes - 6072 G072
szl Shele| - 25,582 5,580
Japariess Yan - 116555 1155455
Mialaysian Ringjt - 16,488 16488
HMeican Paso - 10424 104
Hesw Zeaaland Dollar - 11,789 11,755
Palish Aoty - 5,007 LX)
Singapone Dotlar - 2347 73,347
Sauth African Fand - 1608 16080
Swiiss Franc - AL034 41038
Thii Baht - 00 EFAR
§- 1,759,912 $1,759,912
ALApl 30, 2024, there ate no loreign asrency balances.
Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2023

Assats Hon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
fuastraban Dallar 5 SLAMETS SLEMATS
Braish Pounsd - 5,724,635 572535
Canadian Dolla - 47375 47375
Eura 505 11,7805 1741871
Hesw Zealand Dollar - 12,765 7,165
Harwepian Kione - 30,EM 30,834
Swadish Krona - 4612 617
Swiss Franc - 112,788 112,788
6,960,045 519,604,300 516,564,345

Liabilities Hon-Monetary Monetary Tatal
Astralian Dollar i— L101,031 41,004,031
Hritich Pound - TABT.SF3 TARTATS
Canacdian Dallas - BIAS2 GTAS2
Eurg - 11 8IE 85 1LAIE RS
Japanigein - 237081 2ATHEN
Harweplan Krone - 350 350
Swedish Krona - 150047 60,047
S Franc = 1,800 1&0H
5= 20,777,559 £20,777,559

Currency Hon-Monetary Manetary Tatal
Canadian Dalla Lo 5 55
Crech Korena - 47 A7
Eure - M In
§= 54265 L4256
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{c) Interest rate risk

Interest pate risk is defined as the risk that the far value or futie cash Nows of a financal mstrument will luctuste becaussol changes In market
Interast rates, The rsk arlsos on nancial instraments whose fairvalee o future cash flows are affected by changes in Interest rates. Shoat-tarm
securities areless sensitive to interest rate changes than longer-tenm securities, but they alsa usually offer lower yields, & portion of the Master
Fuid s fnancial assets and labslities are deba nstiuments with lkaating inferest rates, which, in the Manapes's apinion, are generally less sensitive
tr interest rate changes but may decling in valus if their interest rates do not rise as mach, o as quickly as interest rates in general. Comversely,
floating rate instruments will ot generally increasa In valueif interest rates decline, Changes in interest rates will also affect the amount of interest
Income the Master Fund earns on its floating rate invasiments.

High yield securities risk

The Master Fund invests in fixed income secmities rated Baa3 or lower by Moody's or BBB- or bower by S&P (commonly known as “junk™ or “high
yiekd” bords). These securities are considered speculative and, while generally providing greater income than ivestment inchigher rated secu-
rities, inwolve graater risk of principal and income (including the possibifity of default or bankruptoy of the issuers of such securities) and may
Ireolve greates volatility of price {espedally during perieds of economic uncertalnty or change) than securities in the higher rating categories.
Becavme yields vary over time, no specilic level of iIncome can ever be assured. These lower-rated, high yielding fixed income securities generally
tend to reflect econamic changes {and the outlook for econamic growth), short-term corporate and industry develapments and the market’s
perception of thelr credit quality {especially during times of adverse publicity) to a greater extent than higher-rated securities which react primarily
to flusctuations im the general level of Interest rates (aithouph these lower rated fed income securities are also affected by changes in Interest
ratesk, in the past, econamic dewntiens of an increase in intefest rates have, ander certain drosmstances, cawsed a higher incidence of dofault by
the issuersof these securities and may do so in the hature, espedally in the case of highly leverased Esuers.

Payment risk

The issuers of dett securities held by the Master Fund may be able to call a bond or prepay principal duse on the secumities, particularly during
perlods of declindng Interest rates. The Master Fund may not be able to rednvest thiat principal at attractive rates, reducing Income to the Master
Fund, and the Master Fund may lose aay preminum paid., The Master Fumd would alse bose the benedit of lalling inferest rates on price of the prepaid
B O Wwe other haind, rsing interest rates may cause prepayments bo occur at dower than expected tates, This effectively lengthens the
rmaturities of the alfected securilies, making them mone sengitive o nterestrate changes and the Master Fund's net asset value more volatile,
Securities subject to prepayment risk penerally offer less potential los gains wheninterest rates decline, and may offer greater potential fos loss
when interest rates rise,

The tables below represent the interest rate profile of the Statements of inancial position categarzed by maturity dates.

Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2ok
Hen-interest

Less than 1 year 1-Syears Cver 5 years bearing Tatal
Assets
Depositswith broker - 4 - 53,901,548 43,903,548
Cash and cash equivalams 25,341,954 - - 137,159 L5ATR1E3
Sabirs ol imwstmient s awaiting settksmaent - - - 17,774,359 17774, 3%
ecabyalda forvariation margin on
fulures contracis 14,384 - — - LeH, 3584
Inereest and ather recahables - - - (W 1758 et
Financial Assets at Tair value theo ugh profit
o loss 44,7 16,47 50918818 165,105, 262 322311 M5, M1 158
Total assets 570,223,085 550,932,818 £169,705,262 513,936,073 §314,803,238
Liabilities
Payabile s broker Gy b = 503,504 513,504
Purchases of investments awaiting settiament - - - 3,592 650 13,552 50
Redernptions of unils swailing setlement - - - 185,719 188714
Pangabile for variation margin on centrally
dhearisd swap contracls 3713 = - - 751213
Collateral on certain detivatine conlracts,
atvalus - 413431 Laeisar . £, 380,568
Payable lof managemenl Bees - - - 63,103 G300
Panyabili: lor custody and admimistrative loes - - - GG 6,03%
(Mher accrued expensas. - - - 382, M3 g a3
Fimancial Liabilities at Baie valiss throagh profit
o s 551433 1953901 23, 357000 167,847 HE0E A
Total liabilities (excluding net assats
attributable to helders of redesmable units) 4506,546 $2,367,332 525,324,557 575,362,155 $103,830,550
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Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2023
Hon-interest

Less than 1 year 1-Syears Ower 5 years bearing Tatal
Astets
Cashand cash equivalents SE03T 345 b 4— 4175570 48,212,915
Sabos of imestments awalting setllament - - - 118551, 718 118551, 7 18
Fecebaable for variation margin on centrally
sl Swagr conlras 21463 - - - 210463
Inegest and other ieconalies - - - 5 (i S50 5,094,990
Financial dssets at faie value theoggh prefit
of s 65,580,374 4], 353,540 A8 BB 5T FeplF i 53, 157539
Total assets $73,988,182 £41,353,960 $428,828,979 $124,116,504 $663,287,625
Liabilities
Purchuses ol inestmints swailing settlament e G S 5204 BT A5 S8 S0 A5
Raedamptions of urits awaiting setthment £ — i 113,971 113931
Payibie forvariation masgin on
utures comtracts G437 - - - B2A3
Cofkateral of ceetain derivalive contiacts,
al value - 195003 2871510 - 318,532
Payable lor manapemeant kes - - - JI0EN FE TR}
Pagabihe for custody and adminsteseo foes . 174314 LIRELL
Othet accrued expenses - - - 350,550 50,550
Financial Liabdlities at Bair valse through profit
o loss 2355637 2195227 124,180,855 69,559 130,000,321
Total liabilities fexcluding net asdsts
attributable to holdersof redeemable units) 52,418,074 52,590,249 $127,004,368 $286,046,663 $418,459,354

Men-base interest rate exprosures {escluding the notional impact of interest rate swap-contracts ame detailed in the tables above, Interest iate
swap contracts are entered into 28 a method of reducing intevest ratarisk.

April 30
Interest Incorme 024 01%
Cishnd cash squivalents S2.091 360 51447580
Dt secimithes:
Ablair value theough profit o loss BE64 549 1622412
Total 511,056,509 517,677,392

* Thes Master Furd hac i intisrest incoems (eom naestrments i alfilisted issuees fof the periods emding Apnl 30, 2004 and 2023,

{d) Liquidity risk

This ks the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities, The maln Hability of the funds

is the redesnption af any units that investorswish to sell, The Master Fund's financial instiurments that indude imestments in OTC dorivative
contracts, il any, whichare not raded inanomganized pubdic market, may be iliquid. As a result, the Master Fund may not be alde o promptly
legulchate soame of thalr nvestments in these Instroments at an amount close to thelr b valus In osder to mest thelr Bouidity reguitrements or b
respnd o spedfic events such as deterforaticn in the credit wor thiness of any particular sswer,

Tominimize or mitigate the affect of liquidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can aither re-position the portiolioor adjust the
allecation to ohtain a higher concentration of more liguld and viable securities as detalled in the Investrment objective,

Fursuant to the funds’ Investment palicy, the Manager is to monitor on an engoing basis the funds’ liquidity position. Redeemable units
are redeemed on demand at the holder's opticn. However, the Manager does not foresee that the contractual matuity discosed will be
reprasontative of the actual cash cutilows, as holders of these instruments typdcally retaim them for the medium to long-temm,
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The tabdes below analyze the finds” assets and llabdlities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remalning perled at the Statements of

Liguidity Risk April 30, 2024
Greater than

Less than 1 Manth 1-3Months I Months Tatal
Total Assets 574,394,306 514,593,048 $115,815,684 $314,803,238
Liabilities
Py tor broker 13,504 13,50
Purchases ol investment s awaiting setifement 13.8% fS0 - — 13552 650
Redenq:llnnsd urinls awaiting sedthamaent 185119 - - 189,719
Pargabrbis lest varlation mangin on cerneally deared Swap conlscts s ] 253213
Collateral on cerlain desivative conlracts, at value - - 2,380,563 2,380 568
Payable for manapement faes G350 - - 639,703
Panfabile for custody and administratioe foes a3 - - 6035
(Mher accrued expenses 3193 - - a3
Financial Liabilities at fair valus through profit or koss 116655 AHE A TG 254510 M E2 A0E
Total Liabiities 575,564,276 S4BE.6TE 527,808,038 5103,580,990
Ligquidity Risk April 30, 1023

Greater than

Less than 1 Manth 1-%Months I Menths Tatal
Total Assets $184,985,059 54,168,061 5479,134,505 5E638,287,625
Liabilities.
Purchases of Investments Mltlrlgselibemﬂ'lt B4 507 A5 = s T84 507453
Redomplions of unils swailing settloment 113521 - - 13
Payable lor variation mangin on fulures contracts B2A3T - - b2a3t
Coflateral on conain dathatias conliacts, al valus - - 31,018,532 IOIB5IF
Payable for management faes 23080 - - 2308
Payabile for oustody and administrative fees 17,3014 - - 174,514
(et accrund expenses 350,550 - - I50,550
Financial Liabilities at fair valua through profit or bess 2XT LO06T536 18,706 G0 130,000,321
Total Liabilities $285,666,552 $1,067,936 $131,724,835 418,459,354

{e} Credit risk

Thee funds will be exposed (o a oredit risk on parties with whosm they trade and will also bear the sk of settlement delault, The risk of detault on
securities raded is considerad minimal as delivery of securities sold ks anly made when the broker has received payment. Payment s made on a
paerchase when the securilies have been recefved by the broker, The trade will (il if elthes party lails to meet s obligation,

The funds seek to mitigate their credit risk by undertaking transactions with broker dealers, banks and reguiatad exchanges which the Manager
censiders of Wgh cradit ratings and that It conslders to be establishad. Bsks associated with derbative contracts, If any, involve the possibdity that
ther counterpanty to the contract may default on its obligation (o perlorm.
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(200%: $50,856,275),
The Master Fund generally invests in firancial assets which have a credin rating assipred by woll-known rating agencies,
Percentage of Met Assets
April 30
Rating 2024 022
Aadfhaa 13.15% 15.75%
AA A 247 0732
Ay 173 6T
BB/ Baa B fifk?
BEBa 812 P
BB o7 i6d
COC /i arnndl bsliones 334 6T
nrated® 1249 I
Cash anid il othit assets 156 T
100.00% 100,00%

* In arder to monitor the credit quality of the *Umated” underbing debl securities, the Manager, on the basis of the miernal research, prepares its own ratings [or
the vanious mstnements far which pubilicly avallabis cradit ratings are not available. The Manager reviews the kay financial metrics of the issue and structal
Teatures o the instuments i order to caloubste thi implied ratings fosesch of these instiumeng s,

Credit qualities are shown as a percentage of the Master Fund’s net asse1s as of April 30, 2024 and 2023 A bored rated BBB o higher (43 or highes,
for shoat-term debdt) is considered investment grade. This chart reflects the highest security rating peovided by one or more of Standard & Poor's,
Moady's, and Fitch, Ratings and portlolio credit quality will vary over time. Cash and net other assets, if any, represent the market value wedghts of
cash, deiivatives, and shod t1arm securities in the poitfelio

Thee funds themselves have not been rated by an independent rating agency.

The tunds are also exposed tocounterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokers
and ethir recelvable balareces. The funds’ madimisn rlsk of less from counterparty dsk, sither as the protection seller or as the protection bayer,
is the: fair value of the derivative contracts. Thisqisk is mitigated, but net eliminated by having a master netling arangement between (e Master
Fund and the countarparty. Where the Master Fund is a salter of protaction, the maximum patential amount of uture payments the Master Fund
may b reuired o make is equal to the notional amount of the retevant derivative confract.

TheMaster Fund is a party 1o ISDW (Intermational Swaps and Derivatives Assedation, Inc) Master Agreements that povern OTC derivative and
forelgn exchange contracts and Master Securties Forward Transaction Agreements that govemn transactions Involving mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may tesult in defayed delivery (Master Agreemenitsh with cortain countorpa ies entored into fram time te tme,
The Master Agreaments may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties general obligations, representations, agresements,
collateral requirements, events of delault and early termination. With respect to certain counterparties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted to the Master Fund is held in a segregated account by the funds” custodian, The Master Fund's collater al is
dletiviered 1o the counterparty by either pledaing cr ransfering collateral to the counteaparty, Collates sl can be i the lorm ol cash o debt secu-
rities issued by the U5, Government oo related agencies.or other securities as agreed o by the Master Fund and the applicable counterparty,
Collateral requirements are determined bazed on the Master Fund's net position with each counterparty. With respect to ISD4 Master Agreemeants,
termination events applicable to the Master Fund may coos upon a decinein the Master Fund’s net assets below a specified theeshold aver a
certain pericd of time. Termination events applicable to counterpariies may ocourupen a decline in the counterparty’s long-term o short-term
credit ratings below a spedified lavel. In each case, upon occurrence, the other party may elect to terminate sanly and cause settlament of all
derivative and lorelgn exchange contracts cutstanding, including the payment of any losses and costs resulting from such early lermination, as
reasonably detesmined by the terminating party. Any decision by one of more of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect early termdnation could
impact the Master Fund's future derivative activity.

Al the closeof the reperting period, the Master Fund had a net Bability position of 5856696 (2023 52,355.514) an open derivative contracts subject
to the Master Agreements, Collater al posted by the Master Fund at period end bor these apieaments tolaled 5673, 191 (1023: 52 168,676 and imay
inclhuede amounts related to unsettled agreements.

The Master Fund™s main aredit risk concentration is speead between debil securities and Wading derivative products. Less than 109 af the lair
value of favorable contracts oulstanding are with a single Issuer, with the exception of Unllorm Morigage-Backed Securitles, which were valued
at $51, 200 %95 of 18.49% of fair value, Government Nationad Mortgage Association, which were valued at 538,407 740 o 13.88% of fair value and
Bald Securities, Inc, which were valued at $34,509,000 or 12448% of fair value a1 the end of the reporting pericd spal 20, 2024 (2023 Uniform
Mortgape-Backed Socurities, which wore valued al 5258 910,451 or 49.36% ol Gsir value).,

The funds are exposed to credit risk associated with the Custedian whe holds a portion of the funds' financial assets and ULS. cash balances, The
Custodian provides clearing and depositary operations for the Master Fund's Bvestment transactions. The Custodian also provides some of the
shaw t-term lending Eacllities to the Master Fund., The funds were atso exposed to Custodian risk on cash and cash equivalents that the Custodlan
has Failed to treat cotrectly in accordance with procedures agreed to by the funds,
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The maximum exposure fo credit risk as of the reporting date can be analyzred as follows at the end of each reporting peiod;

April 30

Instrument Type 2024 023
Financial assets and liabilities at Bair value threugh profit or kass comprised of:

Fad income imestments. 5219904 871 S B06, T40
itepurchase agreemants 34,509,000 A5, 850 00
Detrvative assats® 6,885,584 12,158 243
Cash and cash equivalenis 25419,143 8/.212505
Sales ol imestment s awalting settlement 17, 3% 118,551,718
Inteqesst and other recetvablies 1.T9B,646 5,094,990
Depositswith broker 3,903,548 -
Fecehvabe orvariation mangin on fulures contracs 104,384 -
Feeciivable bof variation margn on cemially ceared Swap contracts - FT0AGRS

* Do beative st 5 ne comgaiised of Sodward contracts, OTC Swap contractsand lonwand premium syap aption contracts Thi mimum ciedt risk an aetain
dhirrivailied assets is mitigatod as o sl of the Master Funds erforcealsbe master notting smrangsment (Notes Sand 12,
The Master Fund measures aredit risk and expacted credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and koss given delault.
Manapement considers both historical analysis and forward looking Information In determining any expected credit loss. AUARHL 30, 2024 and
Al 30, 2023, all ather receivables, anourds due from brokers, cash and shoet-tenm deposits are hold with counterpaties with a coedit rating of
Adjhaor higher and are due 1o be settbed within 1 week. Management considers the probability of default to be close to 2era as the countarpas-
ties hawe a strong capacity to meet thelr contractual oblipations In the near term, As a result, no loss allowance has been recopgnised based on
r-month expected credit losses as amvy such impalrment wodld Be whally inslgnificant to the Master Fund.

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit rating issued by Moody's al year end of Aa3 {2003 Aa3), 5&P Global Inc. had a credit raling
issued by Moody's at year end of A3 (2023 A3)

Senkar loans are purchased or sold on awhen-issied or detayed deliveay basis and may be settled a month or maore attes the trade date, which
Froarm tirme B tiee can delay the asciual investiment of avadabile cash balances; interest income is acciued based on the termsof the securities,
Senbel leans can be acquired thioagh an agent, by assignmeit (rom another Bolder of U boan, o as & participation interest in anather heldes's
por tion of the loan, When the Master Fund iivvests inaloan or partidpation, the funds are subject to the risk that an intermediate participant
betwien the Master Fund and the bormowes will il to meet Its obligations to the Master Fund, in additlon to the risk that the borrower under the
lexaen iy diefandit on its abligations,

Pusrsuant te the funds’ investment palicy, the Manaper i ta monitor oian engaing basis the funds’ credit position,

{f) Financial derivative instruments

The Master Furk may employ vaticus investment techrigues and instrumaents fof inves tment purposes o for efficient porthelio management of
thair assets lor hedging against market movements, currency exchange, interest rate risks or othenwise. sy such instruments ane used undes
the conditions and within the limits laid down by the Manager. The Master Fund wtilized foewards, futwes, options and swags contracts during the
reperting period, and any resulling gagns or lesses were reported in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss),

{g) Fair valuation estimation

The caarying value bess impalrment provislen of other receivables and payables are assumed o approximate their falr vaiues, The falr value of
financial liabilities tor disclosiie puiposes i estimated by discounting the lulure contractual casl Bow st e curient marke interest rate that &
available to the Master Fund far similas financial instroments.

Ameredment o IFRS T Financial nsirurments Disciosure™ requires the Master Fund to classily Fair value measurements using a (air value hisrarchy
that reflects the significance ol the inputs used inmaking the measuraments,

= Cuoted prices nadjusted) in active markets lonidentical assets or liabilities {Level 1)

= Inputs other than queaoted pices incheded within Level 1 that are observable for asset or liability, either directly (that is, as pricesy or indirectly
{that s, derived from prices) {Level 2)

= Inputs bor the asset o Hability that are net based on observable masket data (that is, unobservabile inpats) {Level 2),

The lewed in the Esir value hieraschy within which the tair value measurernent is categorized inits entinety s determined on the basis of the lowest
Il impast that is sipnificant Lo the lalrvalue measurement inits entirety. For this purpose, the sipnilicance of an input is assessed against the Lair
value measurement in its entirety, i a fair vatue measurement uses observablainputs that require signiticant adjustment based on unobsarvablo
inpauts, that measarement is a Level 3 measurement, Assessing the significance of & particular ingut tohe fair vabue ineasurement in its entirety
recpusres judgment, considering factors specilic to the asset o Hability,
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The determination of what constitutes “chsenatle” requines significant judgment by the funds. The funds consider observable data to be that
rriarket data that is readily avaflable, regulasly distibuted or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and presddied by independent

soumces that areactively imvolved in the relevant market.

Inwestments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therelore classified within Level 1, include active listed ogu-
ties, ewchange traded dervatives, LS. government treasury bils and certain non-U.5. sovereign obligations. The Master Fured does not adjust the

soted price for these Instruments.

Fnancial instruments that trade in markets that are not considened 1o be active but are valued based on quated market prices, dealer quotations
o alternative pricing sources supported by chserablbe inputs ane dassified within Level 2, These include investment-grade corporate bonds and
certain non-LLS, severelgn obligations, listed equities and OTC dervatives. As Level 2 investmentsinclude positions that are not raded in active
miarkets andjor ase subject to transter restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect ifiquidity and/for non-transferability, which are generally

based an available markat Inloomation.

For financial instruments for which there is no active market, the Master Fund may use imemially developed medels, which are usually based on
waluation methods and techndques generally recopnized as standard within the Industry, Inputs for assets and labillities that are not based on

cbservable market data ase classified within Level 3.

The follewing talile analyzes the Tai value hisrarchy of the Master Fund’s financal assets and llabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporiEng pericd April 30, 2024,

Fair Value - Financial assets Level 1 Lewel 2 Lovel 3 Total
Investment in securities:
Fleed Incomis

Asset-hacked seourities $— S1646, 164 - L1646, 160

Collateral on cerlain derative contracts, af valus 1 A%0000 A5 568 - 2GR

Convertibl bonds and nates.
Capital prod= - 430,183 - 431,083
Consurmer oyclicals - 1, HMA16 - 1,4 506
Consurmer staples - TanE12 - THLELE
Energy - 195,392 - | L]
Finandisls - (KEREI - 173
Health case - WA 6L - N 5EL
red‘mlnsj = 2,128,330 = 218330
Ulilitses and power - MR TIT —~ 385,737

Conporate Bonds and nates
Basic matenals - 4, i3 B - 4, 103,845
Capilal gocds - 2515085 = LEIS 085
Cornemunication serdies - 3,004,073 - 3,004,073
Consumer cyclicals — G451 575 - 4451 515
Consumes staples = 27718143 - 2778,743
Energy - BAAT 4 - B AT 540
Firu.mﬂs- - 5,184,356 - 5,189,356
Heallh care — 3021443 - 3020443
Technalogy - 1,355,557 - 1,355,557
[ransp:-rt:llurl — 354 4906 - Fha 906
Litilitkes and powar - A6 483 - ERIEEEEE]

Faralgn povernment and agency bonds and nates. - 17506, B62 — 17 56 862

Martpape-backed secuies
Apency collateralined martpape obligations = 26,155,510 — 26,155,510
Comenercial mortgape- backed securithes — 10,800,074 - 08007
Residential rmrtgage-hadoed Sonniies = 23033051 = 42,033,051
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Sanior loans
Basic matenals 5— 4506947 b— Ln06,047
Capital goods - 1 406 AZT - LADGAZT
COMmmunication semviies - 553,530 - 553,530
Corsrme cyclicals - 3,185 088 - 3,185 088
Consrmes staples - 26,537 - 326,577
Eneigy - £45,218 - &45,218
Financialy - 420,371 - 450,371
Hualth case - 1,555,090 - 1,556,050
Technolagy - 1,740,949 - 1 r0548
Transportation - EH,997 - Lo her)
Sheortderm mvestmeants - ALNTTA4L - A1 07T 4]
LS, governmant and agency mertgage obligations - T2,710,55) - T2 10,55
Totalimvestmant in securities 1,551,000 51,522,871 - 154,413,871
Derivatives:
Foaward confracts 5 ST G 5322311
Forward preminm swap oplion contracts — 4 517067 - 4 517 06T
O Cresdit default contracts - 6,459,859 - G AR AR
Total derivatives - 11,329,267 - 11,329,267
Total Financial assets at fair value threugh profitor loss 5265,743,138
Fair value - Financial assets Level 1 Leved 2 Lewvel 3 Total
Cashequivabams 5— 525,341,954 S S5 341054
Centrally cleared inferost rate swap conliacs — T, 500 938 - T 560,934
Centrally cleared credit default contracts — HES 506 - BES 56
Fufures contracts. BATAT] = = 47971
Fair value - Financial labilities Leviel 1 Lewed 2 Lewvel 3 Total
Derivatives:
Forward contracls b ST BT G SLGT AT
Forward pesnlum swap oplin contracls - 3,079,978 - 3029978
OTC Inferist 1ale swap coniacts - 1B, 143 - 18,143
QT Total rebun swap Ccontracs - MEESA - MBS
QT Crei dielaul conbracts - G085 484 - G OBSA84
Total derivatives - 4,550,116 - 9,550,116
TEW Sl commit masnts = 16482 HG - 16,482 185
Total Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss 526,032 401
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
Centralty cheared inferes] rate swap conlracts - 51054 555 5= STE5A655
Ceptrally cheared credil delaall coptracts - 12,53 - 12,363

All ather assets and lakdlites not measured at falrvalue Bt for which falr value is disclosed age classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a broakdown of assets and liabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a desaription of the valuation technigues.
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The Balloawing Lable analyzes the (ainvalue hierarchy of the Master Funds finanalal assets and liabilities measared at lairvalue at the end of the

reporting period Aprl 30, 2003

Fair Value - Financial assets Level 1 Lewel 2 Lewel T Tetal
IPvestrment in securitieos
Fiuiid Income:
Akl badked seouritics $— 52,155 581 - §2,155,583
Collatess an cerlain dethative contracts, o valise LEIS000 1,403,532 = 3008532
Coatrettibbe bonds and nates
Bl rmalesrials - 63,749 = G144
Capital poods — S0517 - 06612
Comerunicaion senvices - 540,380 - 540,380
Consrmer cyclicals — 20033547 - 3033547
Consamer staples - LESGATT - 1.G36ATT
Ensrgy - BH0.3TS - ESOETS
Financials - 114474 - 11487
Health cane - 2362383 - 2362353
leduwhg_y - 4532688 — 4530688
Transportation - 390,847 - ¥ B57
Litilities and powar - ELETAC] - ELERS ]
‘Corporate bonds and notes
Basic matarials. - 1414306 - 1414316
Capital foods — 5654,111 A 5,654,111
Communication serdoes - L ADE, I L 1,406,207
Cansumet Cyclicals - 10365522 - 10,365,622
Canmim staples = 1,753,527 A 1,753,521
Ensepy = 103,391,706 - 101,391,700
Fiarials - LSTFAS = 151245
Hesslth ¢ s - T I88,577 = 3,288 577
Technalogy -~ 175871 - 1975871
Utilithes aned power - 1, (¥, 37 - 1,60, 307
Fadiin pavern ment and miency bonds and nobis - ArA44.521 - HrA4501
et backind securilies
Ageny collgtiesalized mangage abligations = 36 FOR T = 36,508, TH
Carmeresbcial mortgae backed Secunitees - IR CF - eI
R esnitial ma bgape Dacked Socuities - 5,791 A28 - 6.9 838
Senior kans
Batic materials - 4827125 - 492725
Capital goods - ST 56 - ST
Comemunicalion services - TR0 - it
Consumer cycboals - 1,171,183 - 1171183
Cortumar daples - G310 - 39,104
Ene:g.l - 445521 - 445,527
Heallhcare - 105,735 - 105,735
Technalogy - 138405 - 13405
Shosi-larm mvestmants - 63,090,138 - 63,001,138
W5 povernment and agency morlgage obligations - FADAIT R0 - DA R4
Tatal investrent in securities 1,615,000 517,850,740 - 519,465,740
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Derivatives:

Forward contracts §— S04, 106 5 $294, 2796
Forward premism swap option contracts - T 05 586 - 10005, 585
OTC Cresdin defaull contracts - 81019487 - &0 98T
Total derivatives - 16,691,799 - 16,651,759
Total Financial assets at fair value through profit or Loss $526,157,529
Fair Value - Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tetal
Cash equivabens = 48,037,345 5 $8,007, 345
Cartiltalby cheared ingenest rabe swaprconltacs 54,898,759 = 5l B8, TED
Fair Value - Financial liabilities Lavel 1 Lewed 2 Lewel 3 Total
Derivatives:

Forward conlracts 4= 6,560 §— G495
Forward premism swap oplion conlracis - H63], 150 - LN |
Q1L Tolal retuim swap oontracls - 315519 - 315514
OTC Cresdit default contracts - S.033051 - EIEEI
Total derivatives - 16,645,508 - 16 645,508
T4 sale commitments. - 113,350 813 - 113,350,813
Total Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5130,001,321
Fair value - Financial liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cantrally cleared inferest rate swap conlracts b 45540015 - £49 540,015
Futures contracts 456 598 - - A, 558

All ather assets and labdlitfes ot measured at Bl value bat for which B&irvalue bs disclosed ase dassified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and labilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a desaription of the vabuation technigues.

Financial Assets at lal value theough profit or loss;

April 30
4 023
Financial assats held lor tradeng:
Cashequivalents 525,341,554 58,037,345
Debt securities. 210555463 443,356 00N
Repurchase ageemants 34,509,000 4% B5,000
LS, tressury bills and cormmercial papsr D023 LLS, treasuny Bills, contilicates of depositand
cormriercial papen) 6568441 13,732.138
Detivaties 1L379 6T b ], T
Colateral oo coelain derstie contracts 2380068 3008532
Total financial assets at fair value through profit orloss {induding cash equivalents) $191,085,092 £544,194,284
April 30
4 023
{hes net changes in fair value on financial assats at fairvalue through proft orloss:
fealized 513,305, %) SE3T238.T20)
Chianige b uneealined 13,857,023 14,0580
Total gains/{lasses) $541,035 $22,498,039)
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{h) Capital risk management

Thee cagaital of the lunds is represented by the net assets sttributable to holders of redeemable units, The amount of net assets attributable o
hidders of redesmabde units can chanpe signilicantly on a dally basis, as the funds are subject to dally subscriptions and redemgtions at the
discreticon of unitholders, The funds’ objective when managing capital (s (o saleguard the funds® ability to continue a5 a going concem in order
b provide retui e for initholders ard maintain a capital base to support the develapment of the mvestment activities of the Master Fuid. The
Manages, at its discretion, may scale down asignilicant redemption that it deems would materially prejudice the management of the funds in
accordance with itsivestment objectives.

In extder ko maintain or adjust the cagital structure, the lunds® policies ase to perform the following:

= Manitor the level of daily subscriptions and redempticns relative to the assetsit expects o be able to liquidate within a day and adjust the
amound of distributions (il any) the funds pay to redeemable unitholders.

«  Radeem and sue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the londs, which include the ability to restrict redemptions
and] reqisire certan minimum holdings and subscriptions.

The Manager monitors capital on the basis ol the value of nel as<els attributable to redeamable unitholders,

9. FEES AND EXPEMNSES

{a)} Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an afliliate of the funds, may be entitled to an annual tee of up to 208 tor Class 5 Units and 0608 bor Class | Units payable out
of the assets of the Master Fund. For the fiscal year, at the discretion of the Manager, the management fee was not assessed (o Class 5 Units
associatod with the Master Fumd, The Manager will recefve an adnual fee of up to 180% for Class J Units and 1009 lor Class M Units, the Units
associatod with the Feeder Fund, pee annum on e averapge monthly net assets of each Class ol the Feades Fund,

Distribution fees

The Manager shiall pay Putriam Intermational Distribators, L, (the Distibuto), an alfiliate of the funds, a fee a2 agreed between the Manager and
the Distribator cut of the Manager's bee. The Distributor may share its lees with other partles such as other sub-distributors in such manner and to
suich exttent as Ik seos At from time to time, At the end of the reporting pericd, the Manages pald the Distribiutes 52, 128,207 (2023: 52 5716,425),

it s currently expectizd that the fotal expense ratio (excleding amortized organizational expense) for Class J Units will not exceed 1.50% and
Class M Units will not excood 1.20% por annum of the average monthly Net Asset Vatue of the Feeder Fund, as of April 30, 2004, the Manager reim-
baarsed the funds 5319255 (2023: 5758433} lor expenses that exceaded the lotal expense ratio above. The Manager reserves Lhe right to modily
this tolal expence eatio at any time.

Trustes fees
Fusrsuant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, FirsiCaribbean international Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limitad {the Master Fund Trestes) is entl-

tled o be pald out of the assets of the Master Fund a fee of up te 52 2,500 per anmum subject to an annual review where the fee may be increased
For varkous reasons such as inflation without Unithelder consent as leng as the fees sre still considorad to be at normal commercia cates,

Supch fees will aconue dally and be paid quarterly in arrears. The Master Fund Trustee shafl be reimbarsed for all seasenable out-of pocket
axpenses incurrad by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Funds assets.

Pusrsuant te the Feeder Fund Trust Desd, MaplesEs Limited (the Feader Fund Trostss is entithed to be paid out of the assets of the Foeder Fund a
P o L b €% e aninuam on the average daily Bet Asset Value of the Feeder Fund up to 560,000 per anmum and subject (o a 505,000 minimum
per wear, Such beeswill acorue dally and be pald quarterly in arrears. The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be relmbuersed for all reasonable out-of-pochet
expenses inourmed by the Feeder Fund Trustee in relation to the Feader Fund out of the Fesder Fund's assets,

{b) Transactions with Non-Related parties

Custodian fees

The Manager shall pay to State Street Bank and Trust Company (Lhe Custodian), out of the assets of the Master Fund, a fee of up to 0,109 pes
anrnum on the average monthly Met Assat Value of the Master Fund, acorued daily and paid monthily in armears. The Manager shall also pay o

the Custodian, cut of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0.10% per annurm on the average mosnithly Het Asset Valee of the Feeder Fund
acorued daily and paid monthly inarvears, The Manager shall discharge reasanabde out-of-pockel eapenses pavalie to the Custedian out of sach
fund’s assels.

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custodian has appointed State Street Cayman Trust Compary, Lid. (Sate Streel) {the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
inirelation to the lunds. For administrative services performaed by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agont
ourt of thie assets of the Master Fund a lee up to 567,500 plus 00030% per annum with respect to the Het Asset Value of the Master Fund. additionad
noathly per guiote pricing leeswill apply, This fee will soerue daily and be paid monthly @ srests, The Manager shall dischalge reasonatsle
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out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent cut of the Master Fund's assets. The Manager shall also pay the Sub-Accounting
Agent out of the assets of the Feeder Fund an administrative fee of approximately 55,000 per annum plus monthly per quote pricing fees, This fee

s incheded with the Custody lees on the Statements of comprehensive income {loss), and will acaes daily and be paid maenthlyin arrears. The
Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the Feeder Fund's assets,

Thee funds may eniter into expense offsel arrangements with State Street whereby State Street’s lees are reduced by aedits allowed on cash
balarces. For the vears endead Agnil 20, 2004 and Agail 30, 2003, the funds” expenses were not reduced as a result of expense offset arangements.

Transfer Agent fees

TheManager shall pay Cltibank Europe ple ithe Transker Agent), out of the assets ol the funds, a fee based onthe volume of transfer agent activily,
subfect to a 5300,000 minimusn pos annum on the Master Fund and a 575,00 mindmum per anmam on the Feeder Fund, acoued daily and paid
mmonthly in armears. The Managet shall disclge reasonablo out-of podket expendes payvable 1o the Transler Agent cut of sach luind™s assats,

Other Expenses

In addition, each respective fund bears all other expenses indidental to ils oper aticns and business, including, amongst others all compliance
costs and the fees of its auditors and legal advisers; custody charges; interest and commitment fees on toans and dett balances; any Income,
withbolding or ofher takes; cost of commusdcation with Unitholders and prospective investors.

Each fund may b required to pay subscripticn and redemption charges In connection with imvestments in other investment companies. Each
Funed may be requised to pay broker ape commissions in relation to portialio transactions.

10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES
The Manages voluntarily reimbarsed the Master Fund SRl (03 $138} for trading errors which ooourred during the reporting period. The

relmbursement by the Manages of such amounts had o material Impact on total retum,
11. MARKET CONDITIONS

In the poimal course of Business, the Master Fund rades linancial instruments and enters inte financial ransactions whese risk of potential loss
exists due to changes in the market imarket risk) or fallure of the contracting party to the transaction to perfosm {cradit riskh. The Master Fund may
b exposed to additional credin risk that aninstitution or othes entity with which the Master Fund has unsettled or open transacticns will defau
as discussed in previows notes,

Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds (Cayman) E¥}
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12. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AMD DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The lollowing tables summarize any derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, at the end ol the reporting,
pericds, that are subject 1o an enlorceable master netting agreement or similar agreament. For sacurities lending lransactions or borrowing
transactions associaed with securities sobd short, it amy, see Note 3, For financial repod ting purposes, the Master Fund does not offset nanclal
assets and financial liabilitios Dt are sulject to themaster netting agreements in the Statements of financal pasition

i 3

Barelays Bank PLC

B
o
April 30, 2024 B2 . H
AggEta:
OTC Intesest rate swap contracts™ . - . - . - | S—
Contralby chizsned inberest pale saig conirects | | - | 1, 0HE
arc |ﬂl-.i|ll=!‘|.l.lrl';sh'\-'rhpl:l:li'llr.h1.ﬁ"' . . = | = - -
OTC Creiit default comtracts - protichion sokd™ [ = — | =
| OTC Cnadi defaull conlracts - prodection puerchased ™ [ | [ |
Contrally cleated coedit Selaull confracts’
Fuluees contiacts’ |
anvéul -:mmru-'v;:nrnlan:i::.' | 34193 [ 5,533 [ - -
Forwand prermium swap opticn confrscs® 46, M0 a5 - -
Repurchase agreements” . = =] - 34,509,000
Total Assats | s7Enga3 $5628  SLOES2IE  $24,500,000
Liabilities: ' ' ' |
OTC Inkedest rabe swap conliacts™ - - -
Centrally r.k‘ﬂll?illl'lll".ll'ﬁlIMI:'!nW-I!'t‘QﬂlFKL‘-i . =y | — 1214547
OTE Todal ieurn S conlrsol 8™ [ | I
OTC Credit default contracts - profecticn sokd™ . 4,174 . = - -
OTC Credit defall compacts - protection purchased ™ . -
L.l'.ﬂ.lrilu'.l’Ek"-im“lﬂﬂdﬁ&‘ﬁﬂtwl"l&li‘ . — | — | B AL |
Fulusescontracts' . - =] - -
Farward cunendy conliacts® [ | 13,22 [
Farwared pramium swap aptioh conteac s AT GA BiE5T - -
Total Liabilities | ssme 99803 $1,341,449 5
Total Financial and Derivative Het Assets | 5238519 594175  S[253,213)  $34,509,000
Tatal collateral raceived (pledged)™s | smesa = | §—  §24,509,000
Hetamount ' ' | s1m1982  $(9417S) | $[53213) TRE
. r.:m&ﬁfﬁwm‘mmummsuw-‘mf.rrhtlwﬂ'lﬂ-;l THS commitmants)® . s | = | [
ol Cendr ety rocernd foclucding TRA Commilmemg ™ [ 5 [ 5 [ & 5
. Lincoemtroted cofiabeval recefed . - . - . - | 535,199,180
Collotern! {eciged) fincluding TEA commiments| ™ ' B | — | s | gEmEI)

® Exclhades peemiums, iLany, Incheded in Financial assels and ‘o Financial Ralaltees ak faarvalue thiowgh profit o loss.on the Staterment s of Binancal position,
** Inchuded in Financial assets and 'or Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss on the Statement s of finandal position,
| ducldlitional colkatonal may b required from certain brokers based on indiadual agreements.
*aowvred by master netling agreemien tHate 81,
vy orver- collateralization of total inancial and dervative nol assets i ne shawn, Collateral may inchude amounts rdsed Lo unsetiled agrecments,
' inchudes current day's variation mangin only as reported on the SLatementsof finandal position, whichis nol collateralized. Collateral pledgad fors initial
rafgin en futures contracts, which is not included im the table above, amounted te 457,342,
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= 2
e BN TR : :
S O el e |
i 3% : i | 338 | B a2
: i I i I O
o2 E E E 28 e &%
¥ 5 3 & ¥ ¥ 3 ¥
1001580 | Q46 AT [ELETr BET A0
104, 584
oy 965 33 107 4,750
TST15 gt 3, 0%
$TEL 119 51,000,660 . $945,972 5202827 5174457 $33,707 51,256,456 5991887
18,145
1,546, 952 497,231 2. ] /30,729
10,3349 1 A4
AT R FHLTER 194,785 1258 50
5432,928 41,546,952 5497,231 £220,753 5373476 51,440 51,276,669 5830,729
349,191 50545,272) 449,741 5(7,926) 5(199,019) 535,367 5979,787 5161,158
$283,331 $|451,333) £420,000 5— $[199,019) §— £978,000 5161158
565,860 5193,93%) £4,741 &[7,928) S 531,367 51,787 G
$133,331 ] 4 % - ] 4 b
4 160,005 5 SA0,000 % 3 4 Sa78,000 SI33.000
5 ] 4 % §- H] §- 4
H Sekh1,333) % 5 54271 858} 5 5 5
Putnam Diversified income Trust Fuesds (Cayman) it

149/264



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

= E £ i H
L E] =
£ 5 $ g s 5 5
E - 2 H ;‘ E § 2 4
E E=E ™~
i §5: L - §
£ 3 E 232 ] 2 g Total
5 §— 5 5 ¥ 5 e — &
1 CIEE s
156,758 A3 3571008
104,334
W AAT 37565 /1,911 37,046 2.0 2900 322,311
1,06 B SR A6 36 10,524 457067
4,509,000
5156,T58 51,706 SB50,8EE 527,566 551,911 584,442 $323,323 52,900 544,112,896
18,144
1,374,597
MB L8 HME658
33,3181 B515 3167493
665D
135914 458 &AGT 6 TRaT
120080 B3, 584 13 63 15 S0 E T
533,381 512,000 5564651 §— §— 513,721 206,437 §— 57,973,574
$113,377 510,304} 66,207 527,566 551,911 570,721 116,586 52,900 536,139,322
5123377 - 533,714 §— 581,911 — £100,000 §—
§— 510,304 552,493 27,566 §— $T0,721 $16,506 53,800
5133989 5 % 5 S132367 §— 5 5— 556,254
5 5 233K = b - S0 5 198,71
5 % 4 5 % k] 5 & 535,199,180
& § 5 % % § & ¥ 51,051,385
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Bank of America

MLA
Barelays Bank PLC

%i £
3 i
ASSELs:

Centrally cleared inlerest rate swap contracts’ . - . 5— . L T15400 S—
OTC Tolal piurn S ComMeacls™ | | [

OTC Credit default contracts - protection solkd** . = | = - -
OTC Credit default comtracts - protection purchased ™ - = -
Fuligescontracts [ | [

Farward cumency congacts” . 493 . 134871 . - -
Farward prermium seap optisn conlrscis' | 2670 | Mz [

Repurchase agreements” | = — | - 'ﬂ,m,o-:ur
Total Assets §2,630 567 £34,013 $5,T15 427 $40,850,000
Liabilities: ' ' ' )

Centrally chratedinlerist Cae Swap contractst [ | 5449964

OTC Tatal reurn svap contract 5™ . = — —| -
OTC Credit default comtracts - protection sokd* 51553

OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased ™
Fuluses contiacts!

Farward cunency contracks® . B.195 . = - -
Fiapwared pRemmum swap aption conlrcl s T 54 4575 | E
Total Liabilities saus3e7 59675 55444964 £
Total Financial and Derivative Het Assets | ssaLam0 514318 S270,463 40,850,000
Toral collatersl received (pledgedy™s | ssaare S— 5 545,855,000
Met amount = 514,318 270,463 f—
Comtecied fnanciol inshrmends recedved (nduding TES commitmansts) " ' 51,260,430 ' b= . 5 =
Confrofed cosh collptenl recened fnclding THAcommilmeants)™ . i | 5= | 5 -
Livgomiroted colipfon) o % 1 4 R0 RS 715
Coilarenl redged) findluding T84 commiments) ™ ' i | e | [ 5

® Bxchadas peermiurmes, il any, Incheded in Financial assets and (or Financal labiltios an Fairvalue thiough peodit o lods on the Stalermesnts of Binancial position.
** Inchuded in Financial assats and o Financial liabilities at fair valus throsgh prodit or koss.on the Statement s of financeal position.
| Acldinicmal colbateral tnay b reguiced Tom certasn brokers hased cnindivadual agieemens
*Cosmted by mastir netting agrecmaent (Hale 5},
= sy gver-collatetalizatson of total linanclal and dervative met assets is not shown, Collateral may indude amaunts related b unsettled agreements,
"inchides cimeent day's variation mangin anly &s reported on the Statems s of financial position, whach & pot collateralized. Collateral pledgad fo inftial
margin on futues contracts, which is not included in the table abeve, amounted 1o S840,193.
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- 2
e AR R : :
: i T TR :
z 33 z i3z &3 82
: i I I |
o E E E £ § & B3
5 £l E ) 5 & 5 ¥
2,200 817 1 ABR 510 G5, 358 LA13004
BOTT ETAT 10, 2549 1624
1600 04 L5594 1015 1840619
§1,615,081 §3,202,617 §1,4586,510 529,924 $612,780 §10,359 §1,544,303 51,613,004
1,656,541 | IRE LR B4, 390 1317496
62437
11 L6 f 78 1483 10,340
183716 5,536 B350 1.4%4,231
£1,837,407 $3,656,841 §1,186,917 $35,536 $707,218 £3,483 $1,904,371 51,379,933
S(122,316) 5(1,454,024) 5199,593 5 E12) 5105,562 56,876 5{B0,065) 5433,081
§(213,270) §{1,420,547) $250,000 §— s— §— o £433,041
5(8,046) 5(24,477) £49,593 §15,512) §105,562 56,476 S{E0,065] G
§ — | ¥ 5 $- 5 - 3
& ] S50,000 5 5 ] 4 510000
4 4 § 5 4 ] £ .
$1213,270) 410,429,547} 5 § 4 4 § 5
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: : : 5
== =
b4 8 B3 3
E
3 E i § £ 22 g B E £ Total
5 — | 5 5 5 5 5 S5 118421
300058 Q30 ST 1380354
&3,532 5072 5,963 1,E5] s54a17 T 1
0358 333 LAT4 D44 1555, 556
BT D
5300,558 5094, 587 = 575,072 535,199 51,475,895 55,977 570,944,553
5404 0654
115419 115519
G G 837116 TI10A458
GrATT
94,121 L 195,122 A 140, - i1 B 550
L L4471 BEL TG 6,631,050
554,545 51,267,965 200,066 5195,122 55,856 SB0G, 414 5566 420,835,276
5146413 5{253,378) S[200,068) Si120,050) £33,443 566481 55,411 550,100,317
5246413 5(203,378) 5(120,649) S[110,678) 5— 5669481 5—
§ = | 5(79,417) 59,37) 533,442 G 55,411
SMzI02 ] 5 5= 5 5 5 41,403,532
S1E5,000 4 4 5 5 5580000 4 51,605,000
5 ] §- 5 5- 5 4 S50 B56, TS
% L 530 1A 1 MLETR) 5 & 4 52 168 5T
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13. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These linancial statements were approved by the Tristees on July 30, 2084

14, EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There were no significant pest-Statements of inancial position events theough July 30, 2004

15. OF SPECIAL NOTE

O January 1, 2004, a subsidiary of Frankdin Besources, Inc. ("Franklin Resources™ and logether with 1< subsidiaries, “Franklin Templaton™
acquired Putnam LS, Holdings |, LLC {"Putnam Holdings"), the parent company of The Putnam Advisary Coempany, LLC {PAC) ina stock and cash
transaction (the " Transaction”), As a resullof the Transaction, PAC (an indirect, wholly-owmed subsidiary of Putnam Haoldings became an indirect,
wholly-owned subsidiany of Franklin Resources, PAC comtinues (o provide unintermupted senvices (o the funds parsuaant o the retevant investiment
manapement agrasmant.

Putriam Diversitied income Trust Fumds (Cayman) 39
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2024
211,789 30,667
1,377 199
210,412 30,468
11,339,405
26,597,330
5.47 792
5.58 808
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2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

12
12
12
12
12
12

54,163,798
54,163,798
54,163,798
54,163,798
78,008,919
78,008,919
78,008,919
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2024

2,401.2

103

98,049.7

97

101,511.5

37

104,655.7

39.6

67.9

247.3

103.8

965.4

471.8

7,439.5

15

11,196.3

11

21,718.3

26.8

95.7

293

348,990.4
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2023 2022 30

328

23 103

23 25 193

2024 30
144 .80
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2023 30

2023 30
239,809 34,724,343
102,677 14,867,630
28,846 4,176,901 55,634 8,055,803
33,766 4,889,317
11,274 1,632,475
443,160 64,169,568
70,802 10,252,130
93,909 13,598,023
12,171 1,762,361
121,125 17,538,900
298,007 43,151,414

1,000

78,009 11,295,703
66,908 9,688,278
144,917 20,983,982
236 34,173
145,153 21,018,154
443,160 64,169,568
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2023 30
1,488,143 215,483,106
27,993 4,053,386
1,516,136 219,536,493
239,222 34,639,346
234,594 33,969,211
240,746 34,860,021
197,781 28,638,689
43,074 6,237,115
124,044 17,961,571
1,079,461 156,305,953
436,675 63,230,540
16,762 2,427,138
453,437 65,657,678
103,308 14,958,998
350,129 50,698,679
82 11,874
350,211 50,710,553

161/264



2022 10

2023

2022

2023

10

30

30

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30
1,000 78,009 166,779 82) 244,706 229 244,935
350,129 350,129 350,129
82 82 82
(450,000) (450,000) (450,000)
7 7
1,000 78,009 66,908 144,917 236 145,153
2023 30
1,000 11,295,703 24,149,599 (11,874) 35,433,429 33,159 35,466,588
50,698,679 50,698,679 50,698,679
11,874 11,874 11,874
(65,160,000) (65, 160,000) (65,160,000)
1,014 1,014
1,000 11,295,703 9,688,278 20,983,982 34,173 21,018,154
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2023 30
350,129 50,698,679
(1,553) (224,874)
(161) (23,313)
(336) (48,653)
2,884 417,603
(48,022) (6,953,586)
(5,014) (726,027)
(2,000) (289, 600)
92,413 13,381,402
388,340 56,231,632
(3,522) (509, 986)
8,033 1,163,178

9% 13,901

4,607 667,004
(450,000) (65,160,000)
7 1,014
(449,993) (65,158,986)
(57,046) (8,260,261)
296,855 42,984,604
239,809 34,724,343
12,089 1,750,487
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2023 30
FAIl
FAI
FAIL Franklin
Advisory Services, LLC FAS Random Forest Capital, LLC Franklin SystematiQ

Advisers, LLC Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC Franklin Venture Partners, LLC Franklin
Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC Franklin Advisers GP, LLC Franklin Holdings, LLC
Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC

2023 11 21

FAI FAI
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE VIE
VIE VIE
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NAV

2023 30
21.2
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1,122,188 1,122,188
5,016 5,016
661 661
339,109 27,993 367,102
21,169 21,169
1,488,143 27,993 1,516,136
2023 30
28,846
10,707
16,081
55,634
2023 30
10,204 18,642 28,846
10,204 18,642 28,846
3 16,081 16,081
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93,882
11,000

(1,152)
(422)
103,308

24,290
5,545
5,705
1,191
2,740

39,471

(5,705)

33,766

5.7

21
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28,936
161
(559)
3,452
(5,584)
26,406

5.0

2019 2023

12 3.2

100
85
5.3

AIP
USIP



0.8
AlIP
USIP
USIP
2023 30 USIP
2022 30
2023 30
2023 30
23.7
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1998 ESIP
2017 EIP
31.7 ESIP
EIP 140.0 23.0
EIP 12.2 14.7
1,518,988 26.06
1,274,819 22.56
(1,385,551) 24.61
(24,100) 23.01
2,786 27.50
1,386,942 24.37
1.5
37.3

1,127,865 339,109
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27,993
12,469

1,127,865 379,571

231,766
233,715
5,744
85,468
27,105
106,032

689,830
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96,852
121,125

36,372
107,174

70,802
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2023

{in thousards, excepl share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents g 239,809
Receivables 102,677
Investments (including $28,846 at fair value) 55634
Deferred taxes 33,766
Other 11,274
Total Assets ........... —_— o -~ T —- 443,160
Liabilities
Due to affiliated entities, net £ 70,802
Compensation and benefits 93,909
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12171
Income taxes 121,125
Total liabilities 298,007
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholder's Equity
Comman stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding e
Additional paid in capital 78,009
Retained eamings 66,908
Accumulated other comprehensive loss —
Total Franklin Advisers, Inc, stockholder's equity 144,917
Nonredeemable noncontrolling interests 236
Total stockholder's equity 145,153
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity R S e S e o 443,160

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

3
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023

{in thousands)
Operating Revenues

Investment management fees 2 1,488,143
Service fees from affiliated entities 27,993
Total operating revenues 1,516,136
Operating Expenses
Fund-related expenses 239,222
Advertising and promotion 234 5984
Compensation and benefits 240,746
Sales, distribution and marketing 197,781
Infarmation systems and technology 43,074
General, administrative and other 124,044
Total operating expenses 1,079,461
Operating Income .. . : E e L e Rk o . i 436,675
Imvestment and other income, net 16,762
Income before taxes 453 437
Taxes on income 103,308
MNet Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. .. ... ... ... ... ........ s 350,129
Other Comprehensive Income . ... .. : TS T G S i e : B2
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. : e | 350,211

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023
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{in thousands)

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Deferred income taxes

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in receivables and other

Decrease in investments, net

Decrease in due to affiliated entities, net

Decrease in accrued compensation and benefits
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Increase in income taxes payable to parent

Net cash provided by operating activities

Furchase of investments
Liguidation of investments
Disposails of property and equipment, net

Net cash provided by investing activities .. ... .. .. e

Dividends to parent
Moncontrolling interests

MNet cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Endof Year ... ... ...... ... ... ........

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

&
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] 350,129

(1,553)
{161)

(336)
2,884
(48,022)
(5,014)
(2,000)
82,413

388,340

(3,522)
8,033
96

....... 4,607

(450,000)
7

(449,993)

(57,046)
236,855

. $ 239,809

¥ 12,089
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

Business

Nature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. (*Franklin® or the "parent"). FAl is a registered
investment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, The Company
provides investment management and related services to investment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin (“affiliated funds"), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Services, LLC (*FAS"), Random Forest
Capital, LLC, Franklin SystematiQ Advisers, LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC, Franklin
Venture Partners, LLC, Frankiin Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP,
LLC, Franklin Holdings, LLC and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investment
advisers or general partners of affiliated funds.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally acceptad in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual amounts may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 21,
2023, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available to be issued.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FAl and its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling financial interest. The Company has a controlling financial interest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voting interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity ("VIE"). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

AMVIE is an entity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activities or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
investment. The Company's VIEs are all investment products, and its variable interests consist of its
investment management fees eamed from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Investment
management fees earned from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed to be at market and commensurate with service, The key estimates and assumptions
used in the analyses include the amount of assets under management (“AUM").

VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of investment products in which
the Company has an eguity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure to loss from
these VIEs consists of equity ownership interests of $3.7 million and investment management fee
receivables of 0.2 million.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

While the Company has no contractual obligation to do so, it routinely makes cash investments
when Franklin launches investment products. The Company also may voluntarily elect to provide
investrment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on its business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or other support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year,

Related Parties

Related parties include affiliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entities®). Amounts
due to and from affiliated entities, and substantially all of the Company's operaling revenues,
operating expenses and receivables are from related parties.

The Company has a master netting agreement with Franklin and affiliated entities. As amounts due
to and from Franklin and affiliated entities are a determinable amount and the right of offset is
enforceable by law, receivables from and payables to affiliated entities are offset and the net
amount is presented as due to affiliates, nat,

The Company eamns investment management fees from affiliated funds and affiliated entities. The
Company also earns service fee revenues from its affiliated entities for corporate services, which
are determined based on the costs incurred by the Company in performing these services. These
revenues are recognized when earned.

The Company incurs expenses from its affiliated entities for fund administration, sub-advisory,
sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services. Sub-advisory and fund
administration expenses are determined based on a percentage of AUM. Sales, distribution and
marketing expenses are determined based on the expenses incurred by the affiliated entities in
providing the services to the Company. All other expenses are allocated in accordance with relevant
agreements based on estimates and assumptions that are periodically evaluated and adjusted by
management.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to wvaluation
technigues used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation technigues
are observable or uncbservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which may
include published net asset values ("NAV™) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 quoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than guoted prices that
are ocbservable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. These inputs
require significant management judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumplions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events occur, such as significant price changes in proxies
traded in relevant markets after the close of corresponding markets, trade halts or suspensions, or

8
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2023

unscheduled market closures. These proxies consist of correlated country-specific exchange-traded
securities, such as futures, American Depositary Receipts indices or exchange-traded funds. The
price adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation technigues for which the significant assumptions are observable in the market.

A majority of the Company’s investments is recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis, Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial institutions and nonconsolidated
money market funds sponsored by Franklin and are carried at cost. Due to the short-term nature
and liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions in various countrigs,
limits the amount of credit exposure with any given financial institution and conducts ongoing
evaluations of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which it does business.
Deposits with financial institutions exceeded Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits
by $21.2 million at September 30, 2023, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from affiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amounts. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value,

Investments
Investments consist of investments in sponsored funds and separate accounts, investments in
equity method investees and other equity and debt investments.

Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of nonconsolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separate accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in eamnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAV or estimated using NAV as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounts are determined using guoted
market prices, or independent third-party broker or dealer price guotes if quoted market prices are
not available.

Investments in Equity Method Investees

Investrments in equity method investees consist of equity investments in entities, including
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able to exercise significant influence, but not control.
Significant influence is generally considered to exist when the Company’s ownership interest in the
investee is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee's
board of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, also are considered in determining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the equity method when the Company's
investment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially carried at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company's proportionate share of the entities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.
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Other Investments

Other investments consist of equity investments in entities over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value, and time deposits
with maturities greater than three months from the date of purchase. The equity investments are
measured at cost adjusted for observable price changes and impairment, if any, which are
recognized in eamings. The fair value of the entities is generally estimated using significant
unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach. The time deposits are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature and liquidity.

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. The evaluation of equity
investments considers gqualitative factors, including the financial condition and specific events
related to an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying
value, Impairment of equity securities is recognized in earnings.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Naoneontrolling interests are third-party investor equity in consolidated subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling interest holders to request settlerment.  Nonredeemable noncontrolling
interest are classified as a component of equity. Net income {loss) attributable to third-pary
investors is reflected as net income (loss) attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests in
the statement of income.

Revenues

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally investment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related to the services are satisfied and
it is praobable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not accur in future periods.
The obligations are satisfied over time as the services are rendered. Mulliple services included in
customer contracts are accounted for separately when the obligations are determined to be distinct.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based investment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over time.
Performance-based investment management fees are generally generated when investment
products' performance exceeds targets established in customer contracts, These fees are
recognized when the amount is no longer probable of significant reversal and may relate to
investment management services that were provided in prior periods.

AUM is generally based on the fair value of the underlying securities held by investment products
and is calculated using fair value methods derived primarily from unadjusted quoted market prices,
unadjusted independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes in active markets, or market prices
or price quotes adjusted for observable price movements after the close of the primary market in
accordance with the Company's global valuation and pricing policy. The fair values of securities for
which market prices are not readily available are valued internally using various methodologies
which incorporate significant unobservable inputs as appropriate for each security type and
represent an insignificant percentage of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company’s rale
as principal as it contrals the delegated services provided to customers.

10
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Service fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the senvices are performed over time.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of Franklin's stock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on
the market price of the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock and is amortized to
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesting period, which is generally
three years. Expense relaling to awards subject to performance conditions is recognized if it is
probable that the conditions will be achieved. The probability of achievement is assessed on a
quarterly basis. Forfeitures are accounted for as they ocour.

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and several combined state income tax
returns for Franklin.

Under an intercompany tax sharing agreement (the "Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes to the Company using the separate return method except for tax benefits arising from its
federal and combined state net operating losses, which are utilized by Franklin under the
Agreement. As a result of this exception to the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred tax assets related to federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheet, Instead, these deferred tax assets are treated as transferred to Franklin, The
Company tracks these net operating loss deferred tax assels, if any, in a separate memorandum
account.

Consistent with the separate company method, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for temporary differences
between the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reported amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date. For each tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement. Interest on tax matters is recognized in interest expense and
penalties in other operating expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the current exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in
earnings.

11
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3.

Revenues

Operating revenues by the customer’s geographic area were as follows:

Service fees
Investment from
management affiliated

{in thousands) fees entities Total
Eamed from Affiliated Funds

United States 1,122,188 — 1,122,188

Americas Excluding United States 5016 — 5,016

Europe and Asia — 661
Earned from Affiliated Entities 339,109 27,993 367,102
Earned from Third Parties 21,169 — 21,169

Total . ..

1,488,143

’ 488, : 1,516,136

27,993

A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from customers

domiciled in the United States.
Investments

Investmeants consisted of the following at September 30, 2023;

(in thousands)
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts

Other investments
Investments in equity method investees
Other investments

Total .

Fair Value Measurements

$ 28,846
10,707
16,081
$ 55,634

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows at September 30, 2023:

fir thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investrments, at fair value

Sponsored funds and separate accounts $ 10204 § 18642 § — § 28,846
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value.......... $§ fuizm $ 1Eiﬁ42 % — % EBisdﬁ

12
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Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:

Fair Value Carrying Estimated
{in thousands) Level Value Fair Value
3 8 16,081 § 16,081

Equity securities

6. Taxes on Income

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

{fn thousands)
Current expense

Federal ;] 93,882

State 11,000

Deferred benefit

Federal (1,152)
State (422)
Total...... .. ool B g T S D R D e, 5 103,308

The: significant components of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2023 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Deferred compensation and benefits % 24,290
Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 5,545
Fareign tax credit 5,705
Interest on uncertain tax positions 1,191
Other 2.740
Total deferred tax assels 39,471
Valuation allowance (5,705)
Deferred Tax Assets ................... eps SRRy : . % 33,766

At September 30, 2023 there were $5.7 million of foreign tax credit carry-forwards that expire
between 2027 and 2033, A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax asset
for foreign tax credit carry-forwards due to the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in future years.

13
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The tax expense differs from the federal statutory rate of 21% due to state taxes and other
permanant differences.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

{n thousarnds)

Balance at beginning of year 3 28,936
Additions for tax positions of prior years 161
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (559)
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 3,452
Expiration of statute of limitations (5,584)
Balance at End of Yaar .. ......cciveiverrvsrivarisnnssarinssssisisanasesi B 255405

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in future periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefils is
included in income taxes payable to parant in the consolidated balance sheet.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2023 was approximately $5.0 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized tax benefits table above,

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and multiple combined state income tax
returns for Franklin. The Company is subject to examination by the taxing authorities in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any settlements are subject to significant
uncertainty. The Company's major tax jurisdictions and the tax years for which the statutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the State of New York 2018 to 2023, the States of
California and Massachusetts 2020 to 2023, and the States of Minnesota and New Jersey and U.S,
federal 2019 to 2023.

It is reasonably possible that the total unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2023 could
decrease by an estimated $3.2 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of

statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and potential settiements
with state tax authonties.

14
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7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of any such claims
will not rmaterially affect the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401{k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meet certain employment requirements. Participants may
contribute to the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up to 100% of the cash portion
of the participant's year-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution rate equal to 85%
of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company's expense related to the plan
for the fiscal was $5.3 million,

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company participates in Franklins Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan (the "AIP"), the 2002 Universal Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “USIP™)
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1998 Employee Stock Investment Plan
(the “ESIP™) and the Amended and Restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "EIP", and collectively the "Plans"). The Compensation Committee of Franklin's Board of
Directors determines the terms and conditions of awards under the Plans.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $31.7million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.8 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year.

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unit awards generally based on the performance of the Company and/or its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP provides for the issuance of shares of Franklin's commaon stock for
various stock-related awards to officers, directors, and employees. There are 140.0 million shares
and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. At September 30, 2023, 12.2
million shares and 14,7 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the EIP

Stock awards entile holders to the right to sell the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards vest. Stock unit awards entitle holders to receive the underlying shares of

common stock once the awards vest. Awards vest based on the passage of time or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin financial performance goals.

15
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Stock and stock unit award activity consisted of time-based awards and was as follows during the

fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Mon-vested balance at September 30,2022 .. ... . . 1518988 & 26.08
Granted 1,274,819 22 56
Vested (1,385,551) 24.61
Forfeited/canceled (24,100) 230
Transferred in, nat 2 786 27.50
Mon-vested Balance at September 30, 2023 ; s 1,386,942 % 24.37

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $23.7
million at Septerber 30, 2023. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.5 years. The total fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards
vested during the fiscal year was $37.3 million.
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10. Related Party Transactions

The amounts related to transactions with affiliates included in the Company's consolidated
statement of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated Affiliated
{in thousands) Funds Entities
Investment management fees g 1,127,865 § 339,100
Service fees from affiiates == 27,993
Investment Income — 12,469
Total Revenues from Affiliates ... ...................... § 1,127,865 § 379,571
Fund-related expenseas — 231,766
Advertising and promaotion — 233,715
Compensation and benefits — 5,744
Sales, distribution and marketing 5 — % B85 468
Infarmation systems and technalogy — 27,105
General, administrative and other — 106,032
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates ... ............. . & — 5 689,830
Receivables 3 96,652 % —_—
Income taxes payable to parent S 121,125
Due to affiliated entilies, net is comprised of the following:
Due fram affiiated entities o 36,372
Due to affiiated entities — 107,174
70,802

FAl may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of $500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement. Amounts loaned under this agreement earn interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.113% per annum. The agreement expires on June 30, 2024 unless
terminated by mutual written consent of FA| and Franklin. There are no amounts receivable under
this agreement as of September 30, 2023.

11. Subsequent Events

On Movember 17, 2023, the Company declared a dividend of $37.0 million,

17
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2022 30

2022 30
296,855 42,984,604
101,679 14,723,119
39,630 5,738,424 62,786 9,091,413
14,085 2,039,508
32,213 4,664,442
12,032 1,742,234
519,650 75,245,320
132,909 19,245,223
98,923 14,324,050
14,171 2,051,961
28,712 4,157,498
274,715 39,778,732

1,000

78,009 11,295,703
166,779 24,149,599
(82) (11,874)
244,706 35,433,429
229 33,159
244,935 35,466,588
519,650 75,245,320
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2022 30
1,673,072 242,260,826
19,558 2,831,998
1,692,630 245,092,824
263,527 38,158,710
224,461 32,501,953
219,510 31,785,048
217,135 31,441,148
40,828 5,911,894
117,686 17,040,933
1,083,147 156,839, 686
609,483 88,253,138
(6,382) (924,114)
603,101 87,329,025
140,042 20,278,082
463,059 67,050,943
463,059 67,050,943
(79) (11,439)
462,980 67,039,504
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2022 30
1,000 78,036 238,720 ®) 316,753 221 316,974
463,059 463,059 463,059
@n 79) (106) (106)
(535,000) (535,000) (535,000)
8 8
1,000 78,009 166,779 (82) 244,706 229 244,935
2022 30
1,000 11,299,613 34,566,656 (434) 45,865,834 32,001 45,897,835
67,050,943 67,050,943 67,050,943
(3,910) (11,439) (15,349) (15,349)
(77,468,000) (77,468,000) (77,468,000)
1,158 1,158
1,000 11,295,703 24,149,599 (11,874) 35,433,429 33,159 35,466,588
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2022 30
463,059 67,050,943
(421) (60,961)
(898) (130,030)
1,020 147,696
26,319 3,810,991
128,206 18,564,229
2,187 316,678
(100, 225) (14,512,580)
(8,700) (1,259,760)
(1,812) (262,378)
(5,951) (861,705)
502,784 72,803,123
(5,944) (860,691)
14 2,027
2,561 370,833
(3,369) (487,831)
(535,000) (77,468,000)
Q@n (3,910)
8 1,158
(535,019) (77,470,751)
(35,604) (5.155,459)
332,459 48,140,063
296,855 42,984,604
145,710 21,098,808



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000o00DoO0O0oOo(E40158)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 30
FAIl
FAI
FAIL Franklin
Advisory Services, LLC FAS Random Forest Capital, LLC Franklin SystematiQ

Advisers, LLC Franklin Digital Lending GP, LLC Franklin Venture Partners, LLC Franklin
Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC Franklin Advisers GP, LLC Franklin Holdings, LLC
Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC

2022 11 14

FAI FAI
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE VIE
VIE VIE
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2022 30
13.4
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AUM
AUM

AUM

AUM
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1,240,821 1,240,821
1,447 1,447
381,935 19,558 401,493
48,869 48,869
1,673,072 19,558 1,692,630
30
31,721
7,909
39,630
7,075
16,081
62,786
30
19,526 12,195 31,721
6 7,903 7,909
19,532 20,098 39,630
3 16,081 16,081
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122,606
18,308

(1,170)
298

140,042

20,518
6,077
4,512
1,432
4,186

36,725
(4,512)

32,213

5.3
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126,767 90.5
12,577 9.0
2,212 1.6
(1,514) (1.1)
140,042 100.0
23.2
2021 30 26,075
379
O]
5,393
(2,907)
2022 30 28,936
2022 30 6.1
2019 2022
2018 2022
2022 30
12 6.5
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50
2002 USIP
1998 ESIP
2017
AIP USIP ESIP
32.8
0.7 2022 30
12.6
AlIP
USIP
USIP EIP 140.0

2022 30 USIP EIP 19.0
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2021 30 2,199,194 23.37
741,977 35.52

(1,424,529) 21.54

(10,898) 26.75

13,244 30.01

2022 30 1,518,988 26.06

2022 30
27.1 1.5
41.7

10

1,242,268 381,935
19,558

1,242,268 401,493

256,777
223,550
5,360
97,967
20,971
100,923

705,548

95,732
14,085
132,909
28,712

FAI 500
0.375
FAI 2026 11 15
2022 30
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2,114
1,082
(9,829)

251
(6,382)

2022 30
8.6
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2022

{in thouzands, excepl share data)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents g 296,855
Receivables 101,679
Investments (including $39,630 at fair value) 62,786
Due from parent and affiliated entities 14,085
Deferred taxes 32,213
Other 12,032
Total Assets ... ... ... R e I ey R P A Lo $ 519,650
Liabilities
Due to parent and affiliated entities 3 132,909
Compensation and benefits 98,923
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,171
Income taxes payable to parent 28,712
Total liahilities 274,715

Commitments and Contingencies (Note T)

Stockholder's Equity

Commaon stock, na par value, 1,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding —
Additional paid in capital 78,009
Retained eamings 166,779
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (82)
Total Franklin Advisers, Inc. stockholder's equity 244 706
Monredeemable noncontrolling interests 229
Total stockholder's equity 244 935
Total Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity . . . ; ] 519,650

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022

{in thousands)
Operating Revenues

Investment management fees z 1,673,072
Service fees from affiliated entities 19,558
Total operating revenues 1,682,630
Operating Expenses
Fund-related expenses 263,527
Advertising and promotion 224 461
Compensation and benefits 219,510
Sales, distribution and marketing 217,135
Information systems and technology 40,828
General, administrative and other 117,686
Total operating expenses 1,083,147
Operating Income ? ; : . i ; z 609,483
Investment and other loss, net (6,382)
Income before taxes 603,101
Taxes on income 140,042
Met income 463,069
Less: Met income attributable to noncontrolling interests —
Net Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. : 2 .. § 463,059
Other Comprehensive Loss (79)
Comprehensive Income Attributable to Franklin Advisers, Inc. . .. bR, | 462,980

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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{in thousands)
MNet income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Net gain on investments
Deferred income taxes
Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in receivables and other

Decrease in due from parent and affiliated entities
Decrease in investments, net

Decrease in due to parent and affiliated entities
Decrease in accrued compensation and benefits
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in income taxes payable to parent

Net cash provided by operating activities ... ...

Furchase of investments
Liguidation of investments
Disposals of property and equipment, net

Net cash used in investing activities ... . ... .. ..

Dividends to parent
Return of capital to parent
MNoncontrolling interests

Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash paid for income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(&

209/264

] 463,089

(421)
(898)
1,020

26,319
128,206
2,187
{100,225)
(8,700)
(1,812)
(5,951)

502,784

(5,944)
14
2,561

(3,369)

(535,000)
(27)

8
(535,019)

(35,604)
332,459

$ 296,855

£ 145,710
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

Business

Nature of Operations

Franklin Advisers, Inc. ("FAI" and collectively with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a whaolly
owned subsidiary of Franklin Resources, Inc. (*Franklin® or the "parent”). FAl is a registered
investment adviser with the United States Securities and Exchange Cormmission. The Company
provides investment management and related services to investment products that include funds
sponsored by Franklin (“affiliated funds"), as well as institutional separate accounts.

FAl's wholly owned subsidiaries are Franklin Advisory Services, LLC (*FAS"), Random Forest
Capital, LLC, Franklin SystermatiQ Advisers., LLC, Franklin Digital Lending GF, LLC, Franklin
\enture Partners, LLC, Franklin Venture Partners (Talos Cayman) GP, LLC, Franklin Advisers GP,
LLC, Franklin Holdings, LLC and Franklin Templeton Blockchain GP, LLC, which are investrment
advisers or general partners of affiliated funds.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consclidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, which require the use of estimates, judgments,
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period presented.
Management believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate and the resulting balances are
reasonable; however, due to the inherent uncertainties in making estimates, actual amounts may
differ from these estimates. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 14,
2022, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements became available to be issued.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FAl and its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling financial interest. The Company has a controlling financial interest when it owns a
majority of the voting interest in a voting interest entity or is the primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity ("VIE"). Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

AVIE is an enlity in which the equity investment holders have not contributed sufficient capital to
finance its activities or do not have defined rights and obligations normally associated with an equity
investment. The Company's VIEs are all investment products, and its variable interests consist of its
investment management fees earmed from these products.

The Company is the primary beneficiary of a VIE if it has the power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE. Investment
management fees earned from VIEs are excluded from the primary beneficiary determination if they
are deemed to be at market and commensurate with service, The key estimates and assumptions
used in the analyses include the amount of assets under management ("ALUM") and the life of the
investment product,

VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary consist of investment products in which
the Company has an equity ownership interest. The Company's maximum exposure to loss from
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

these VIEs consists of equity ownership interests of $5.2 million and investment management fees
of $2.3 million.

While the Company has no contractual obligation to do so, it routinely makes cash investments
when Franklin launches investment products, The Company also may voluntarily elect to provide
investment products with additional direct or indirect financial support based on its business
objectives. The Company did not provide financial or other support to any of its investment products
during the fiscal year.

Related Parties

Related parties include affiliated funds and other Franklin subsidiaries ("affiliated entities”). Amounts
due to and from affiliated entities, and substantially all of the Company's operating revenues,
operating expenses and receivables are from related parties.

The Company earmns investment management fees from affiliated funds and affiliated entities. The
Company also earns service fee revenues from its affiliated entities for corporate services, which
are determined based on the costs incurred by the Company in performing these services. These
revenues are recognized when earned.

The Company incurs expenses from its affiliated entities for fund administration, sub-advisory,
sales, marketing and distribution, technology and other operating services. Sub-advisory and fund
administration expenses are determined based on a percentage of AUM. Sales, distribution and
markeling expenses are determined based on the expenses incurred by the affiliated entities in
providing the services to the Company. All other expenses are allocated in accordance with relevant
agreements based on estimates and assumptions that are periodically evaluated and adjusted by
management.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
technigues used to measure fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques
are observable or unobservable. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are set forth below. The
assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entiraty.

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which may
include published net asset values ("NAV™) for fund products.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 gquoted prices, such as non-binding quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; or inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity. These inputs
require significant management judgment and reflect the Company's estimation of
assumplions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability,

Quoted market prices may be adjusted if events occur, such as significant price changes in proxies
traded in relevant markets after the close of corresponding markets, trade halts or suspensions, or
unscheduled market closures. These proxies consist of correlated country-specific exchange-traded
securities, such as futures, American Depositary Receipts indices or exchange-traded funds. The

211/264



EDINETCI I
OOoOooooooooooooooOn(e41ss)
O000oOoOddooooooooOoOaOon
Franklin Advisers, Inc.
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September 30, 2022

price adjustments are primarily determined based on third-party factors derived from model-based
valuation technigues for which the significant assumplions are observable in the market.

A majority of the Company's investments is recorded at fair value or amounts that approximate fair
value on a recurring basis. Fair values are estimated for disclosure purposes for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value.,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with financial institutions and nonconsolidated
money market funds sponsored by Franklin and are carried at cost. Due to the short-term nature
and liquidity of these financial instruments, their carrying values approximate fair value.

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions in various countries,
limits the amount of credit exposure with any given financial institution and conducts ongoing
evaluations of the creditworthiness of the financial institutions with which it does business,
Deposits with financial institutions exceeded Faderal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits
by £13.4 million at September 30, 2022, representing a concentration of credit risk.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of fees receivable from affiliated funds and are carried at invoiced
amounts. Due to the short-term nature and liquidity of the receivables, their carrying values
approximate fair value,

Investments
Investments consist of investments in sponsored funds and separate accounts, investments in
equity method investees and other squity and debt investments,

Sponsored Funds and Separate Accounts

Sponsored funds and separate accounts consist primarily of noncensolidated sponsored funds and
separate accounts. Sponsored funds and separate accounts are carried at fair value with changes
in the fair value recognized as gains and losses in earnings. The fair values of fund products are
determined based on their published NAV or estimated using NAV as a practical expedient. The
fair values of the underlying investments in the separate accounts are determined using quoted
market prices, or independent third-party broker or dealer price quotes if quoted market prices are
not available.

Investments in Equity Method Investees

Investments in equity method investees consist of eguity investments in entities, including
sponsored funds, over which the Company is able to exercise significant influence, but not control.
Significant influence is generally considered to exist when the Company’s ownership interest in the
investee is between 20% and 50%, although other factors, such as representation on the investee's
board of directors and the impact of commercial arrangements, also are considered in determining
whether the equity method of accounting is appropriate. Investments in limited partnerships and
limited liability companies are accounted for using the eguity method when the Company's
investment is more than minor or when the Company is the general partner. Under the equity
method of accounting, the investments are initially carmed at cost and subsequently adjusted by the
Company's proportionate share of the entities’ net income, which is recognized in earnings.
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Other Investments

Other investments consist of equity investments in entities over which the Company is unable to
exercise significant influence and do not have a readily determinable fair value, and time deposits
with maturities greater than three months from the date of purchase. The equity investments are
measured at cost adjusted for observable price changes and impairment, if any, which are
recognized in eamings. The fair value of the entities is generally estimated using significant
unobservable inputs in either a market-based or income-based approach. The time deposits are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature and liquidity.

Impairment of Investments

Investments in equity method investees and equity investments that do not have a readily
determinable fair value are evaluated for impairment on a quarterly basis. The evaluation of equity
investments considers gqualitative factors, including the financial condition and specific events
related to an investee, that may indicate the fair value of the investment is less than its carrying
value, Impairment of equity securities is recognized in earnings.

Nonredeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Naoneontrolling interests are third-party investor equity in consolidated subsidiaries that do not
permit the noncontrolling interest holders to request settlerment.  Nonredeemable noncontrolling
interest are classified as a component of eguity. Net income {loss) attributable to third-pary
investors is reflected as net income (loss) attributable to nonredeemable.

Revenues

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing investment management and related services
to its customers, which are generally investment products or investors in separate accounts.
Revenues are recognized when the Company's obligations related to the services are satisfied and
it is probable that a significant reversal of the revenue amount would not occur in future periods.
The obligations are satisfied over time as the services are rendered. Multiple services included in
customer contracts are accounted for separately when the obligations are determined ta be distinct.

Fees from providing investment management, other than performance-based investment
management fees, are determined based on a percentage of AUM, primarily on a monthly basis
using daily average AUM, and are recognized as the services are performed over time.
Performance-based investment management fees are generated when investment products'
performance exceeds targets established in customer contracts. These fees are recognized when
the amount is no langer probable of significant reversal and may relate to investment management
services that were provided in prior periods. AUM is generally based on the fair value of the
underlying securities heid by investment products and is calculated using fair value methods
derived primarily from unadjusted guoted market prices, unadjusted independent third-party broker
or dealer price quotes in active markets, or market prices or price quotes adjusted for observable
price movements after the close of the primary market in accordance with the Company’s global
valuation and pricing policy. The fair values of securities for which market prices are not readily
available are valued internally using wvarious methodologies which incorporate significant
unobservable inputs as appropriate for each security type and represent an insignificant percentage
of total AUM.

Revenue is recorded gross of payments made to third-party service providers in the Company's role
as principal as it controls the delegated services provided to customers.

10
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Service fees from affiliates are calculated based on contractual fee splits with the affiliates and
recognized as the senvices are performed over time.

Stock-Based Compensation

The fair value of Franklin's stock-based payment awards is estimated on the date of grant based on
the market price of the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock and is amortized to
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the related vesting period, which is generally
three years. Expense relaling to awards subject to performance conditions is recognized if it is
probable that the conditions will be achieved. The probability of achievement is assessed on a
quarterly basis. Forfeitures are accounted for as they ocour.

Postretirement Benefits
Defined contribution plan costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and several combined state income tax
returns for Franklin.

Under an intercompany tax sharing agreement (the "Agreement”), Franklin allocates these income
taxes to the Company using the separate return method except for tax benefits arising from its
federal and combined state net operating losses, which are utilized by Franklin under the
Agreement. As a result of this exception to the separate company method, the Company does not
record deferred tax assets related to federal or combined state income tax losses in its consolidated
balance sheet, Instead, these deferred tax assets are treated as transferred to Franklin, The
Company tracks these net operating loss deferred tax assels, if any, in a separate memorandum
account.

Consistent with the separate company method, deferred tax assets and liabilities, other than those
related to federal or combined state net operating losses, are recorded for temporary differences
between the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities and the reported amounts in the
consolidated financial statements using the statutory tax rates in effect for the year when the
reported amount of the asset or liability is expected to be recovered or settled, respectively. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax
expense in the period that includes the enactment date. For each tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, the Company determines whether it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained upon examination based on the technical merits of the position, including
resolution of any related appeals or litigation. A tax position that meets the more likely than not
recognition threshold is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon settlement. Interest on tax matters is recognized in interest expense and
penalties in other operating expenses.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are revalued at the current exchange rate at the

transaction date and any related foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized in
earnings.

11
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3.

Revenues

Operating revenues by the customer’s geographic area were as follows:

Service fees
Investment from
management affiliated

{in thousands) fees entities Total
Eamed from Affiliated Funds

United States 1,240,821 — 1,240,821

Americas Excluding United States 1,447 —_ 1,447
Earned from Affiliated Entities 381,935 19,558 401,493
Earned from Third Parties 48,869 — 48 869
B« | 1,673,072 19,558 1,692,630

A substantial amount of investment management fees earned from third parties is from customers

domiciled in the United States.

Investments

Investments consisted of the following at September 30, 2022

{in thousands)

Sponsored funds and separate accounts
Other equity and debt investments

Total investments, at fair value
Investments in equity methad investees
Other investmenits

Total ...........

Fair Value Measurements

5 31,721
7,909

39,630

7.075

16,081

5 62,786

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows at September 30, 2022;

{ire thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments, at fair value
Sponsored funds and separate accounts = $ 19526 $ 12185 § — §F 3.2
Other equity and debt investments 6 7,903 — 7,909
Total Assets Measured at Fair Value............. 5 19‘!532 5 2{|!uaa $ —_ & 39553[!
Financial instruments that were not measured at fair value were as follows:
{in thousands) Fair Value Carrying Estimated
Level Value Fair Value
Equity securities 3 16,081 % 16,081

12
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

B. Taxes on Income

Taxes on income for the fiscal year were as follows:

{in thousands)

Current expense

Federal 3 122,606

State 18,308

Deferred benefit

Federal {1,170)

State 298

Tobal e B 140,042

The significant components of deferred tax assets at September 30, 2022 were as follows:

{in thousands)

Deferred compensation and benefits g 20,518

Tax benefit for uncertain tax positions 6,077

Foreign tax credit 48512

Interest on uncertain tax positions 1,432

Other 4,186
Total deferred tax assets 36,725

Valuation allowance (4.512)

Deferred Tax Assets . ... ... _ ... .. B B .. 8 32,213

At September 30, 2022 there were $5.3 million of foreign tax credit carry-forwards that expire
between 2023 and 2032, A valuation allowance has been provided to offset the deferred tax asset
for foreign tax credit carry-forwards due to the uncertainty of realizing the benefits in future years.

The following reconciles the amount of tax expense at the federal statutory rate of 21% and taxes
on income as reflected in the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year:

Percent of Tax

{in Brousards) Tax Provision Provision
Federal taxes at statutory rate $ 126,767 90.5 %
State taxes, net of federal tax effect 12 57T 9.0 %
Urncertain tax position 2212 1.6 %
Oither (1,514) {1.1)%
Tax Provision . . 3 140,042 100.0 %
Effective tax rate 23.2%

13
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of gross unrecognized tax benefits for the
fiscal year is as follows:

{in thousands)

Balance at September 30, 2021 3 26,075
Additions for tax positions of prior years 379
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (4)
Additions for tax positions related to the current year 5,393
Expiration of statute of limitations (2,907)
Balance at September 30, 2022 . . . - . R .. % 28,936

If recognized, all of this amount, net of any deferred tax benefits, would favorably affect the
Company's effective income tax rate in fulure periods. The accrual for unrecognized tax benefits is
included in income taxes payable to parent in the consolidated balance sheet.

Accrued interest on uncertain tax positions at September 30, 2022 was approximately $6.1 million
and is not presented in the unrecognized tax benefits table above.

The Company is included in the consolidated U.S. federal and multiple combined state income tax
returns for Franklin, The Company is subject to examination by the taxing authorities in multiple
jurisdictions. Examination outcomes and the timing of any settlements are subject to significant
uncertainty. The Company's major tax jurisdictions and the tax years for which the statutes of
limitations have not expired are as follows: the US. federal and State of Massachuselts
(2019-2022} and State of California, Minnesota, New Jersey and Mew York (2018 to 2022).

It is reasonably possible that the total unrecognized tax benefits as of September 30, 2022 could
decrease by an estimated $6.5 million within the next twelve months as a result of expiration of
statutes of limitations in the U.S. federal and certain state tax jurisdictions, and potential settlements
with state tax authorities.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is from time to time involved in litigation relating to claims arising in the normal
course of business. Management is of the opinion that the ultimate resolution of any such claims
will not materially affect the Company's business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity,

8. Defined Contribution Plan

Franklin sponsors a defined contribution 401{k) plan that covers substantially all U.S. employees of
Franklin and its subsidiaries who meet certain employment requirements. Participants may
contribute to the plan up to 50% of pretax annual compensation and up to 100% of the cash portion
of the participant's year-end bonus, as defined by the plan and subject to Internal Revenue Code
limitations, each year to the plan. The Company makes a matching contribution rate equal to 85%
of eligible compensation contributed by participants. The Company's portion of expense related to
the plan for the fiscal was $5.2 million.

14
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company participates in Franklins Amended and Restated Annual Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “AlIP"), the 2002 Universal Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restated (the “USIP™)
and the amended and restated Franklin Resources, Inc. 1928 Employee Stock Investment Plan
(the “ESIP™) and the Amended and Reslated Franklin Resources, Inc. 2017 Equity Incentive Plan
(the "EIP"), The Compensation Committee of Franklin's Board of Directors determines the terms
and conditions of awards under the AIP, the USIP, the ESIP and the EIF.

The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $32.8 million for stock and stock
unit awards and $0.7 million for the ESIP during the fiscal year. The Company's liability to Franklin
for stock-based compensation as of September 30, 2022 was $12.6 million and is included in
amounts due to affiliated entities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Stock and Stock Unit Awards

Under the terms of the AIP, eligible employees may receive cash, equity awards, and/or mutual fund
unit awards generally based on the performance of the Company andfor its funds, and the
individual employee. The USIP provides for the issuance of shares of Franklin's common stock for
various stock-related awards to officers, directors, and employees. There are 140.0 million shares
and 23.0 million shares authorized under the USIP and the EIP. At September 30, 2022, 19.0
million shares and 14.5 million shares were available for grant under the USIP and the EIP

Stock awards entifle holders to the right to sell the underlying shares of Franklin's common stock
once the awards vest. Stock unit awards entitle holders to receive the underlying shares of
common stock once the awards vest.  Awards vest based on the passage of time or the
achievement of predetermined Franklin financial performance goals.

Stock and stock unit award activity was as follows during the fiscal year:

Weighted-
Average Grant
Time-Based Date Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Non-vested balance at September 30, 2021 ... .. . 2189,194 % 23.37
Granted 741,977 35.52
Vested (1,424 529) 21.54
Forfeited/canceled {10,898) 26.75
Transferred in 13,244 30.01
Medified - —
Mon-vested Balance at September 30, 2022 . . . 1,518,988 % 26.06

Total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock and stock unit awards, was $27.1
million at September 30, 2022. This cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted-
average vesting period of 1.5 years. The total fair value of stock awards and stock unit awards
vested during the fiscal year was $41.7 million.

15
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Franklin Advisers, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2022

10.

11.

Related Party Transactions

The amounts related to transactions with affiliates included in the Company's consolidated
statement of income and balance sheet were as follows:

Affiliated Affiliated
{in thousands) Funds Entities
Investment management fees 3 1242268 § 381,935
Service fees from affilates — 19,558
Total Revenues from Affiliates R A e | 1,242,268 3% 401,493
Fund administration fees — 256,777
Advertising and promaotion — 223,550
Compensation and benefils — 5,360
Sales, distribution and marketing ] — 3 97 967
Information systems and technology — 20,971
General, administrative and other — 100,923
Total Expenses Incurred from Affiliates . . -1 — 5 705,548
Receivables % 95732 § —
Due from affiliated entities o 14,085
Due to affiliated entities — 132,909
Income taxes payable to parent — 28,712

FAl may lend to Franklin amounts up to a maximum of 500 million under an unsecured revolving
credit agreement. Amounts loaned under this agreement earn interest at an applicable market rate
at the time of borrowing, plus 0.375% per annum. The agreement expires on November 15, 2026
unless terminated by mutual written consent of FAl and Frankiin. There are no amounts receivable
under this agreement as of September 30, 2022.

Investment and Other Income, net

Other income (expenses) consisted of the following for the fiscal year:

{in thousands)

Investment and Other Income, Net

Dividend income § 2114

Interest income 1,082

Losses on investments, net {9.829)
Other, net 251

T 1 | T e e A R R R ) e e e e (6,382)

Substantially all of the Company's dividend income was generated by investments in
nonconsolidated funds. Net losses recognized on the Company's equily securities measured at
fair value that were held at September 30, 2022 were $8.6 million,

16
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MaplesFS Limited

2024 500,000 7,240

State Street Bank and Trust Campany

2024 247.6 5,852

225

State Street Cayman Trust Company Ltd.
CIMA

500,000

P.0. Box 31113 SMB
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying combined financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30, 2024
and 2023, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (loss), of changes in net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred
to as the "combined financial statements").

In our opinion, the accompanying combined financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financia
position of the Fund as of April 30, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of
the combined financial statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Fund and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsihilities of management for the combined financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of combined
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the combined financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as
a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the combined financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the combined financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the combined financia statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Fund' s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the
Manager's Report, but does not include the combined financial statements and our auditors report thereon. Our opinion
on the combined financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the combined financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the combined financial statements, or
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 30, 2024
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inc.:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2023, and the related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern for one year after the date the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Francisco, Cdlifornia
November 21, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Franklin Advisers, Inc

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Franklin Advisers, Inc and its subsidiaries (the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2022, and the related consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income, of stockholder's equity and of cash flows for the year then ended,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for

one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by areasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Francisco, Cdlifornia
November 14, 2022
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